1)
2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD

Metropolitan Council, 390 Robert Street North, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101

NOTICE OF A MEETING
of the
PLANNING COMMITTEE
Thursday, October 12, 2017
1:00 PM - Metropolitan Council, Room LLA
390 Robert Street N, Saint Paul, MN

AGENDA

Call to Order

Adoption of Agenda

Approval of the Minutes from the September 2017 Meeting

Action ltems

1. 2017-27: MPO MOU with MnDOT - Katie White

Info Items

1. Info: Revised 2018 UPWP - Katie White

2. Info: Reg Solicitation / TPP Update - RBTN Changes - Steve Elmer

3. Info: TPP Update - Strategies Comments — Amy Vennewitz / Cole Hiniker
4. Info: TPP Update - Transit Investments Overview - Cole Hiniker

5. Info: TPP Update - Land Use draft chapter — Cole Hiniker

6. Info: TPP Update - Overall Revenue / Finance - Tony Fischer

Other Business

Adjourn

ment

Full Meeting Packet



TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD
Metropolitan Council
390 N. Robert St., St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-1805

Notes of a Meeting of the
TAC-PLANNING COMMITTEE
September 14", 2017

MEMBERS PRESENT: Holly Anderson, Jack Byers, Paul Czech, Jack Forslund, Lisa Freese, Anton
Jerve, Elaine Koutsoukos, Steve Mahowald, Jason Pieper, Amanda Smith, Katie White, Rachel Wiken,

OTHERS PRESENT: Daniel Pena, Tony Fischer, Michelle Fure, Taylor Beswick, Amy Vennewitz, Carl
Ohrn, Cole Hiniker, Jonathan Ehrlich, Aaron Bartling (MVTA), Brad Larsen (MnDOT), Dave Burns, Kris
Riesenberg (FHWA).

1. Call to Order
The Meeting was called to order by Lisa Freese.

2. Adoption of the Agenda
Agenda changed to remove info items 4) TPP Chapter 2 and 5) RBTN Changes. White moved, Czech
seconded.

3. Approval of the Minutes from the August 2017 meetings
White moved, Koutsoukos seconded. Minutes were approved unanimously.

4. Action Item 2017-24 Hennepin County Functional Class Requests #1349 & #1350
Jason Pieper from Hennepin County presented two functional class change requests.
#1349 — Lowry Ave in Minneapolis, from St Anthony Blvd to West Broadway

Hennepin County wished to upgrade the road from Other Arterial to A Minor Augmentor. The road
connects the industrial areas in North Minneapolis, future developments near the Mississippi River, and
North East Minneapolis. It is also a major freight corridor in Minneapolis.

Mike Larson commented on the difference between the eastern and western portions of this roadway.
Hennepin County responded that they wanted the classification to be continuous along the whole
roadway, and that they would work with the City of Minneapolis to address access modifications on the
eastern portion of the roadway.

Jack Byers from Minneapolis commented that the City Council had adopted development plans along
the road that support this roadway reclassification.

#1350 Vernon Ave in Edina, from Hwy 100 to Hwy 62

Hennepin County wished to upgrade this road from Other Arterial to A Minor Reliever. The road
provides access to Principal Arterials that frequently experience congestion. On the North/East end of
the road, the Grandview District Plan supports upgrading this road to serve future landuse.

Committee Members and MnDOT both expressed concerns that the suburban residential nature of this
roadway conflicted with A Minor designation. MnDOT expressed concern the current configuration of
the roadway did not support reliever functions and questioned if an upgrade would reduce multimodal



access to the road. Pieper replied the County did not have plans to reconfigure the road and hoped to
increase bike/ped accommodations on the roadway by widening the bridge over CP Rail in the future.
He also noted that Edina City Council supports the upgrade.

Motion to approve, White Moved, Jack Byers Second. Motion passed with Chair Freese as single
opposition to the Vernon Ave reclassification.

5. Info Items

1) MnPASS Il1 Study (Brad Larsen)

Brad Larsen from MnDOT presented the MnPASS 111 Study. This was a study to update the
MnPASS system vision. Previous MnPASS and highway studies were evaluated to develop three
scenarios of corridors which were modeled. Corridors were evaluated based on change in person
throughput, person hours saved, travel time savings, and cost. Scenario 3 was chosen for similar
benefits to Scenarios 1 and 2, but for less anticipated cost. Scenario 3 corridors will be included
in the TPP along with Existing MnPASS, Tier 1 MnPASS (funded) and Tier 2 (currently
identified as future MnPASS corridors, but no funding attached).

Steve Mahowald asked how person throughput factored in transit and Larsen replied that transit
providers were included in the summaries, to factor in how transit service would improve on
highway corridors with MnPASS.

The final report will be available in October.

2) TPP Overview Challenges and Opportunities (Michelle Fure)

Michelle Fure presented the outline for Section D: Regional Transportation Challenges and
Opportunities. This document includes new and emerging trends, issues to be addressed in the
TPP revisions. She asked the committee to consider these topics and think about what should
be presented in a stronger fashion, what is missing, and needs to be reflected differently. The
full document is available online.

Overall the committee asked for more detail, less summary language. Jack Byers wanted to see
more examples, such as “Other Technology” should detail smart system, smart railways, etc.

Amanda Smith commented that environmental equity and justice were used interchangeably
and care should be taken framing these separate issues. She also noted that more attention
should be given to impact of overall population from vehicle emission, not just greenhouse
gasses.

Committee members were encouraged to bring thoughts back to the next meeting or to email
staff.

3) TPP Chapter 1 Performance Based Planning (Cole Hiniker)

Cole Hiniker presented the new Chapter 1 concept. In the last TPP Chapter 1 was existing
system for all modes. This version of the TPP, Chapter 1 will include performance based
planning and the system vision.



Cole noted that this section has been taken on by other staff because of recent absence of Mark
Filipi.

Hiniker walked through a handout on performance based planning, federal requirements, and
relationship to Thrive.

Jack Byers asked if equity was not a goal. Hiniker commented that the same question was
received from the Council, but that the plan is being written using the equity lens across all
measures and goals.

He encouraged staff to send feedback to himself, Katie White, or Rachel Wiken.

5. Other Business

Katie White commented that soon TAC Planning will be getting redlined TPP chapters for
review. She encouraged committee members to make time to review these and share with
others at their organizations that need to see the material. Lisa asked that packets get mailed a
week ahead of time to allow for better collaboration and review.

Amy Vennewitz encouraged committee members to review the strategies chapter ahead of the
next meeting.

Holly Anderson asked how TPP comments by committee members will be responded to.
White said that we will not have a formal comment response like during the public comment
period. Emails and comments from the committee will be considered and discussed.

6. Adjournment
Adjourn at 2:57pm



Transportation Advisory Board
of the Metropolitan Council of the Twin Cities

ACTION TRANSMITTAL 2017-27

DATE: October 5, 2017

TO: TAC Planning

PREPARED BY: Katie White, Senior Planner, 651-602-1716

SUBJECT: Metropolitan Planning Organization Memorandum
Understanding

REQUESTED Request that the Transportation Advisory Board adopt the

ACTION: memorandum of understanding between the Metropolitan Council

and MnDOT, and recommend adoption to the Metropolitan Council.

RECOMMENDED Recommend adoption of the metropolitan planning organization
MOTION: memorandum of understanding for the Twin Cities Metropolitan

Area.

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE OF ACTION: Federal regulations require that the
mutual transportation planning responsibilities of the Metropolitan Planning Organization
(MPO), the state, and the public transportation operator be incorporated into a written
agreement, or Memorandum of Understanding. The MOU is signed by the Council, as
both the MPO and the public transit operator, and MnDOT.

In November 2016 the Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit
Administration conducted a Transportation Management Area Certification Review,
which is a routine activity occurring every four years to ensure that the MPO activities of
the region comply with federal requirements.

One of the recommendations from the TMA Certification Review was that Metropolitan
Council and MnDOT update their memorandum of understanding. The current MOU was
signed in December of 2008 and there have been changes in federal law and regulation,
as well as planning activities, since that date. This updated MOU includes language to
acknowledge those changes, and better reflects the regional planning process currently

being conducted.

RELATIONSHIP TO REGIONAL POLICY: The MPO MOU is a requirement of the TMA
Certification Review completed by FHWA and FTA in November 2016. The final report in
early 2017 provided a deadline of March 2018 to complete this item.

ROUTING

TO

ACTION REQUESTED

DATE COMPLETED

TAC Planning Committee

Review & Recommend

Technical Advisory Committee

Review & Recommend

390 North Robert St., St. Paul, Minnesota

55101-1805 (651) 602-1000 Fax (651) 602-1739




Subject: 2018 Unified Planning Work Program

Transportation Advisory Board

Review & Recommend

Metropolitan Council
Transportation Committee

Review & Recommend

Metropolitan Council

Review & Adopt

Page 2




MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)
BETWEEN

THE MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (MNDOT) and THE METROPOLITAN COUNCIL OF

THE TWIN CITIES (COUNCIL)

The purpose of this MOU is to document and agree to carry out a continuing, cooperative, and
comprehensive (3C) metropolitan transportation planning and programming process as defined and
required by federal law (49 USC 5303 and 5304.) and the U.S. Department of Transportation regulations
23 CFR 450; 23 USC 134 and 135.

1.

RESPONSIBILITIES. MnDOT and the Council recognize and agree to conduct a continuing,
cooperative, and comprehensive transportation planning and programming process for the Twin
Cities Metropolitan Area and that their mutual responsibilities for carrying out this process are
documented in the following sections.

1.1.

1.2.

SCOPE OF THE METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PROCESS. The Council,
MnDOT and other public transportation operators will conduct a metropolitan transportation
planning process that is continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive and provide for the
consideration of projects, strategies, and services that will address the planning factors
specified in 23 CFR 450.306, Scope of the Metropolitan Transportation Planning Process. This
metropolitan planning process will be carried out in coordination with the state
transportation planning process required under 23 CFR 450 Subpart B, Statewide
Transportation Planning and Programming.

MPO STRUCTURE, PLANNING BOUNDARIES AND MISSION. The Minnesota Legislature
established the Metropolitan Council in 1967 (MN Statute 473.123, subd. 1.) Asrequired by
federal law, the Council has been designated as the MPO for the Twin Cities Metropolitan
Area by the Governor since 1973 and in state statute (MN Statute 473.146 Subd. 4 a). This
designation was affirmed by the US DOT in a letter dated Feb 1, 2016 (Figure 1). The Council
is composed of 16 Council members and a Chair who are appointed by and serve at the
pleasure of the governor and are confirmed by the state Senate. The 16 members represent
districts of equal population size within the seven-county metropolitan area (Hennepin,
Ramsey, Anoka, Washington, Carver, Scott, and Dakota counties) and cannot hold a locally
elected office. The Council’s bylaws establish methods of setting the time and place of
meetings, officers, voting procedures, and committees.

Under federal law the MPO planning boundary must include the entire metropolitan area.
After the 2010 Census the boundaries of the urbanized area were extended beyond the
seven-county area to include portions of Wright and Sherburne counties in Minnesota and
the community of Houlton in Wisconsin. A Memorandum of Understanding to Conduct
Federally-Required Metropolitan Planning Activities was adopted between the Council and
impacted jurisdictions in Wright and Sherburne counties in 2014. The Wisconsin portion of
the urbanized area is approximately 0.25 developable square miles with a 2010 population of
276 individuals. After the closure of the Stillwater lift bridge, and opening of the new St. Croix
River bridge in August 2017, this area is no longer a contiguous part of the Twin Cities
urbanized area. The MPO Planning area boundary will be reviewed after the 2020 Census.

The mission of the Council is to develop, in cooperation with local communities, a
comprehensive regional development framework that guides the efficient growth of the



13.

1.4.

1.5.

MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

metropolitan area through long-term plans for transportation, aviation, wastewater, and
regional recreation and open space systems. The Council operates transit and wastewater
services and administers housing and other grant programs.

TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD. The Transportation Advisory Board (TAB) was
established in 1974 by the Council in accordance with Minnesota Statute 473.146 Subd. 4b to
assist the Council in providing a forum for transportation planning. The TAB provides a forum
for deliberation among state, regional and local officials, transportation providers and private
citizens to articulate their positions on issues that affect transportation planning and funding
in the Twin Cities region. The TAB acts as an advisory board to the Metropolitan Council.

The 34-member TAB is composed of elected county and municipal officials, private citizens,
representatives of state and regional agencies, modal representatives and MnDOT. The
Council appoints eight citizen members, two transit representatives, one non-motorized
representative and one of its own Council members to TAB. MnDOT appoints a freight
representative, and the Association of Metropolitan Municipalities (also known as “Metro
Cities”) appoints ten locally-elected officials to the TAB. Each of the seven counties appoints a
commissioner, and MnDOT, the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) and the
Metropolitan Airports Commission (MAC) each appoint a representative to the TAB. One
elected official from a city participating in the replacement transit service program is
appointed by the Suburban Transit Association. This membership is specified in Minnesota
Statute 473.146 Subd. 4 and repeated in TAB bylaws. The bylaws of the TAB also establish the
time and place of meetings, officers, voting procedures, committees and staffing.

The TAB established a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) composed of 32 professional staff
from MnDOT and the principal governmental units and agencies involved in transportation in
the metropolitan area. The role of the TAC is to provide technical assistance and coordination
to the TAB. The bylaws of the TAC establish its members, time and place of meeting, officers,
voting procedures, committees, and staffing. TAC bylaws are approved by TAB.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION OPERATOR. The Council is the public transportation operator and
designated recipient of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funds (Figure2, Metro Transit
5307 Recipient Designation). The Council’s transportation operations are carried out through
Metro Transit, an operating division of the Council. Metro Transit offers an integrated
network of buses, light rail, and commuter rail transit as well as resources for those who
carpool, vanpool, walk or bike. The Council also contracts with private operators to provide
additional transit service in the Metropolitan Area. The Council also coordinates its services
with suburban transit providers.

STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION PLAN. The Minnesota Statewide Multimodal Transportation
Plan (Plan) is prepared by MnDOT to comply with federal planning regulation (23 CFR
450.216, Development and Content of the Long-range Statewide Transportation Plan) that
requires the State to develop a long-range statewide transportation plan, with a minimum
20-year forecast period at the time of adoption. MnDOT’s commissioner is also required by
state law (Minn. Stat. 174.03) to develop, adopt, revise and monitor a Plan. The Plan
provides a framework with policies, measures, and implementation guidance which assist
MnDOT and its partners in focusing investments and services to achieve desired performance
levels and outcomes. The Plan is developed in cooperation with the Council and TAB.



1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

TRANSPORTATION POLICY PLAN (MPO LONG-RANGE PLAN). A metropolitan development
guide, including a Transportation Policy Plan, is required by Minnesota Statute 473.146 Subd.
1-3. The purpose of the Transportation Policy Plan (TPP) is to develop an integrated
transportation system that advances regional economic, land use and growth management
goals as defined by the metropolitan development guide. The TPP is a multi-purpose
document that describes the Council’s approach to metropolitan transportation investments
over a 20-year planning horizon for highways, transit, aviation, freight, pedestrians and
bicyclists. The TPP also fulfills Federal law and regulations for a metropolitan long-range
transportation plan, and addresses the requirements of the Clean Air Act Amendments
(CAAA) and its associated regulations. It reflects major transportation studies that have been
conducted since the last update, and identifies the funds available to maintain or replace the
highway and transit infrastructure.

Revenue forecasts for regional transportation investment are developed cooperatively, using
highway funding information provided by MnDOT and transit revenue assumptions
developed by the Council. The adopted long-range transportation plan must balance planned
investments with funds that are reasonably expected to be available, as further discussed in
section 1.10.

The Council, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and FTA must make a joint
determination that the TPP is in conformity with the Clean Air Act and Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) regulations.

The TPP is prepared by the Council and reflects active participation of all agencies responsible
for transportation planning within the Metropolitan Planning Area, including MnDOT, the
TAB and its Technical Advisory Committee. It is updated in accordance with state and federal
regulations.

UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM. The Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) is an
annual description and documentation of proposed transportation and transportation-
related planning activities in the metropolitan planning area. It also serves as the Council’s
application for USDOT transportation planning funds. The Council prepares and approves the
UPWP and submits the document to MnDOT for forwarding to USDOT for its review and
approval. The metropolitan transportation planning components of the work programs of
MnDOT, MPCA and MAC are referenced in the UPWP. The TAB reviews and recommends the
UPWP to the Council.

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) AND STATE TRANSPORTATION
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (STIP). The Transportation Improvement Program is required by
federal regulation 23 CFR 450.326. The TIP is a 4-year multi-modal program including
highway, transit, bike, walk, and transportation enhancements projects and programs
proposed for federal funding in the Metropolitan Planning Area, including MnDOT highway
projects. The projects in the TIP are consistent with and implement the region’s
transportation plans and priorities.

Each year the Council staff, with the assistance of the MnDOT Metro division staff, prepares a
draft TIP. MnDOT ensures projects are entered in the document annually, working in
cooperation with the Council to prepare a financial analysis of the document, formatting the
document and preparing the appropriate funding tables, managing and maintaining a fiscal



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

balance throughout the year, and ensuring the projects actually built are consistent with
adopted policy.

Project selection for the TIP is conducted in the following manner in coordination with
MnDOT. Projects consistent with the Statewide Transportation Plan and the TPP are
selected by MnDOT for National Highway Performance Program (NHPP) funds, in
consultation with the Council and TAB. FTA capital transit grant program projects (5307,
5337, 5339 and 5309) are selected using the Council’s Six-Year Capital Improvement
Program. Section 5310 and 5311 projects are selected by MnDOT through a competitive
statewide process.

It is a key responsibility of the Council’s TAB to solicit and evaluate project applications for
funding from two federal programs: Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBGP)
and Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ). The criteria and process for this regional
solicitation are updated biennially through the 3C process and adopted by the TAB. Projects
are solicited, reviewed, scored and ranked using the adopted process and criteria. The TAB
directs staff to include the projects selected through this process in the next draft
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). The TAB also selects projects to be funded
through the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP). MnDOT solicits for projects in
this program, evaluates them and presents the ranked list to the TAB for selection.

The Council and TAB ensure the TIP is consistent with priorities in the Air Quality State
Implementation Plan and the Minnesota Statewide Multimodal Plan.

Following a public comment period in accordance with the Council’s adopted Public
Participation Plan for Transportation Planning, the TAB approves the TIP and recommends it
to the Council for adoption.

The adopted TIP is included without change in the Minnesota State Transportation
Improvement Program as required by federal regulations under 23 CFR 450.218.

The STIP is a statewide prioritized listing/program of transportation projects covering a
period of four years. The project lists are analyzed with respect to state and department
goals, funding targets, and various federal categories. MnDOT coordinates and manages the
document. As the Governor’s designee, MnDOT approves the STIP and forwards it to FHWA
and FTA for their joint agency review and approval action. This final approval action includes
a finding that the Twin Cities Metropolitan Planning Process meets or substantially meets
the requirements of 23 USC 134 and 135 and 49 USC 5303 as amended. A positive planning
finding and STIP approval action allows MnDOT to request authorization of Federal funds for
projects programmed in the STIP and TIP.

Changes to the TIP and STIP follow the requirements for TIP revisions as specified in 23 CFR
450.328 and the procedures developed by MnDOT and FHWA entitled “STIP Amendments
and Administrative Modifications.” More detail can be found in the Council’s “Planning and
Programming Guide.”

1.9. FISCALLY CONSTRAINED FINANCIAL PLANS FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAND AND
TIP. Financial plans are required to be included with the regional, long-range transportation
plan and the TIP. These fiscal plans must demonstrate that the costs of projects and



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

programs contained in the regional long-range plan and TIP (including costs of implementing,
operating and maintaining the proposed transportation system improvements) are
consistent with projected sources of federal, state and local revenues reasonably available.
When the regional long-range plan or TIP is amended or updated, the Council and MnDOT
will cooperatively develop, share, review and adopt estimates of costs and estimates of
funds that are available, committed or reasonably expected to be available to demonstrate
fiscal constraint.

1.10. ANNUAL LISTING OF PROJECTS WITH FEDERAL FUNIDNG OBLIGATIONS. Each year within 90
days after the close of the federal fiscal year, the Council and MnDOT will cooperatively
develop a listing of projects from the TIP for which federal transportation funds were
obligated in the preceding fiscal year. This report will contain the projects and financial
information as required in 23 CFR 450.334

1.11. 1.11 CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROCESS. The Council, in cooperation with MnDOT and
the TAB, will review and refine congestion management objectives and performance
measures to assess the extent of congestion and support the evaluation of the effectiveness
of congestion mitigation and mobility enhancement strategies for the movement of goods
and people. The metropolitan transportation planning process includes and will maintain an
ongoing congestion management process for monitoring, operating and maintaining the
regional transportation system required by 23 CFR 450.322. An advisory group consisting of
local partners, MnDOT, and FHWA has been established to coordinate this activity. The
Council is committed to consulting with MnDOT and FHWA as this activity continues.

1.12. AIR QUALITY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING. The air quality transportation planning activities
for the Metropolitan Area will be described in the annual UPWP. These activities will be
designed to ensure that the Council can make a conformity determination on the TIP, TPP,
and any regionally significant amendments to either in accordance with the Clean Air Act
Amendments and the Environmental Protection Agency transportation conformity regulation
in 40 CFR Part 93. The Council, MnDOT, MPCA, USDOT, EPA have adopted interagency and
public consultation procedures, regarding regional air quality planning activities,
development and amendments to the TPP and TIP. These are outlined in the Transportation
Conformity Memorandum of Agreement on State Implementation Plan Obligations.
Consistent with that agreement, the Council makes a conformity determination, in
consultation with MnDOT, for the maintenance area outside the MPO boundary.

1.13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN. The Council prepares and adopts a Public Participation Plan
for transportation planning to provide citizens, affected public agencies, and all interested
parties with reasonable opportunities to be involved in the metropolitan transportation
planning process and to review and comment at key decision points as specified in 23 CFR
450.316. The processes outlined in the Council plan will be coordinated with MnDOT’s public
involvement and consultation process. This plan is in addition to the Council’s Public
Engagement Plan which provides engagement guidance for all functions of the Council,
including the non-MPO component units. The Council’s Planning & Programming Guide
provides additional information on the processes of the MPO.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS. This MOU is not a legally binding agreement and creates no legally
binding obligations for any party. Nothing in this MOU should be construed as limiting or affecting
the legal authorities of the parties, or as requiring the parties to perform beyond their respective
authorities. Any party may, upon written notice, amend, or discontinue its role outlined in the
MOU. Because of this mutual desire to proceed, each party fully intends to make a good faith



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

effort to achieve the goals described above including working together to comply with federal and
state laws.

GOVERNMENT DATA. The parties acknowledge that this MOU, as well as any data created,
collected, stored, or received under the terms of this MOU, are “Government Data” within the
meaning of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act (Minnesota Statutes chapter 13), and
that they must comply with the provisions of the Act as it relates to such data.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This MOU shall be effective when all appropriate signatures have been obtained
by MnDOT, the MPO, and the Public Transportation Operator.

REVIEW AND MODIFICATION. The Council and MnDOT will review the MOU after each USDOT
planning certification review, changes in federal or state legislation that affect the Council, or at any
time when roles or responsibilities change. Any amendments to this MOU must be mutually agreed
to in writing.

TERMINATION. The terms of this MOU may be terminated by any one of the parties by giving 90
days written notice to each of the other parties. This MOU will remain in effect until terminated as
provided in this clause, or until replaced by a new MOU.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

| concur with this Memorandum of Understanding

Minnesota Department of Transportation: Metropolitan Council
By: By:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

MnDOT Contract Management
(as to form)

By:

Date:




MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

FIGURE 1: MPO DESIGNATION AFFIRMATION



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

Qe

U.S. Department Headquarters 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
of Transportation Washington, DC 20590
Federal Transit
Administration

' Federal Highway FEB 01 2016

Administration

Ms. Ann R. Goering

Ratwik, Roszak & Maloney, P.A.
730 Second Avenue South, Suite 300
Minneapolis, MN 55402

Re:  Metropolitan Council Certification Review
Dear Ms. Goering:

On behalf of Secretary Foxx, this letter responds to your correspondence dated October 1,
2015, on behalf of a coalition of suburban counties of the Twin Cities metropolitan area
(“Suburban Counties”), as well as your January 11, 2016, letter inquiring as to the status
of our response. In your October 1 letter, you requested that the Federal Highway Ad-
ministration (“FHWA”) and Federal Transit Administration (“FTA”) review an earlier
determination, reached jointly by the FHWA Minnesota Division office and FTA Region
V, that the Minnesota Metropolitan Council (“Metropolitan Council”) complies with the
structure requirements of 23 U.S.C. § 134(d)(2)" in its role as a metropolitan planning
organization (“MPO”). For the reasons set forth below, FHWA and FTA confirm their
earlier determination.

I. Background
A. Federal Requirements

Since the 1991 passage of the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act
(“ISTEA™), Pub. L. 102-240, Federal law has required MPOs serving transportation man-
agement areas (TMAs) to include certain structuring of their boards. The current version
of the law requires:

Not later than 2 years after the date of enactment of [the Moving Ahead for Pro-
gress in the 21st Century Act, Pub. L. 112-141, (“MAP-217)], each metropolitan
planning organization that serves an area designated as a transportation manage-
ment area shall consist of—

! Substantively similar provisions are codified in 23 U.S.C. § 134 and in 49 U.S.C. § 5303. For clarity, this
letter refers only to Title 23.



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332
Suburban counties of the Twin Cities area

Page 2 of 5

(A) local elected officials;

(B) officials of public agencies that administer or operate major modes of trans-
portation in the metropolitan area, including representation by providers of public
transportation; and

(C) appropriate State officials.

23 U.S.C. § 134(d)(2). The law also includes a “grandfathering” provision, which ex-
cludes planning entities established prior to ISTEA from the structuring requirements:

Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to interfere with the authority, un-
der any State law in effect on December 18, 1991, of a public agency with mul-
timodal transportation responsibilities-

(A) to develop the plans and TIPs for adoption by a metropolitan planning organ-
ization; and

(B) to develop long-range capital plans, coordinate transit services and projects,
and carry out other activities pursuant to State law.

23 U.S.C. § 134(d)(4).? This grandfathering clause applies to an MPO when: (1) the
MPO operates pursuant to a State law that was in effect on or before December 18, 1991;
(2) such State law has not been amended after December 18, 1991, with regard to the
structure or organization of the MPO; and (3) the MPO has not been designated or re-
designated after December 18, 1991. Policy Guidance on Metropolitan Planning Organi-
zation (MPO) Representation, 79 Fed. Reg. 31,214, 31,216 (June 2, 2014).

B. The Suburban Counties’ May 8, 2015, letter to FHWA and FTA

The Metropolitan Council is the designated MPO for the Twin Cities metropolitan area,
which is a transportation management area. Minn. Stat. § 473.146, subd. 4(a). It is com-
posed of 17 members, all of whom are appointed by the Governor. Id. § 473.123,

subds. 3 and 4. For purposes of transportation planning, the Metropolitan Council in-
cludes a transportation advisory board (“TAB”) of, inter alia, local elected officials, rep-
resentatives of State agencies, and representatives of public transit, freight transportation,
non-motorized transportation, and the Metropolitan Airports Commission. Id. § 473.146,
subd. 4(b).

Between June 25 and 28, 2012, FHWA and FTA conducted a review of the Metropolitan
Council’s compliance with the planning requirements of 23 C.F.R. Part 450. Transporta-

? In previous correspondence on this matter, this section was designated as 23 U.S.C. § 134(d)(3). With the
enactment of the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (“FAST Act”), Pub. L. 114-94, § 1201(3),
on December 4, 2015, this section became 23 U.S.C. § 134(d)(4).

10



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332
Suburban counties of the Twin Cities area

Page 3 of 5

tion Planning Certification Review Report for the Minneapolis-St. Paul Metropolitan Ar-
ea (“2012 Report”). The 2012 Report concluded that the Metropolitan Council was the
properly constituted MPO for the region and made no recommendations for corrective
actions. Id. at 9, 10. In reaching this conclusion, the 2012 Report emphasized the role of
the TAB in the Metropolitan Council’s planning process. For example, the 2012 Report
stated that the “Metropolitan Council in conjunction with the [TAB] is the designated
MPQO” and that “[t]ogether, the Council and the TAB are responsible for the governance
and transportation policy making for the Twin Cities region.” Id.

In a May 8, 2015, letter addressed to FHWA'’s and FTA’s regional offices, the Suburban
Counties asked FHWA and FTA to partially reject the 2012 Report’s findings and hold
that the Metropolitan Council does not comply with the membership requirements for
MPOs serving TMAs. The Suburban Counties argued that, because Federal law defines
an MPO as “the policy board of an organization”, 23 U.S.C. § 134(b)(2), the TAB, which
by Minnesota law is merely advisory, should not be considered part of the MPO, and
therefore the Metropolitan Council does not have the membership required by 23 U.S.C.
§ 134(d)(2). The Suburban Counties further argued that the Metropolitan Council is not
grandfathered because post-ISTEA amendments to Minnesota law, adopted in 1994, have
affected the structure or organization of the Metropolitan Council.

FHWA'’s Division and FTA’s Regional office replied on August 3, 2015. The regional
offices agreed with the Suburban Counties that the TAB is not part of the MPO, and
therefore the Metropolitan Council’s membership does not comply with 23 U.S.C.

§ 134(d)(2). However, the regional offices disagreed with respect to the application of
the grandfathering clause. Considering the changes in Minnesota law identified by the
Suburban Counties, the regional offices concluded that “the changes were not ‘substan-
tial’ so as to require a redesignation” under 23 C.F.R. § 450.310(k). The regional offices’
reply went on to discuss situations when an MPO would or would not be required to re-
designate.

II. The Suburban Counties’ October 1, 2015, letter to FHWA and FTA

The Suburban Counties sent another letter on October 1, 2015, this time addressed to
Secretary Foxx and the Administrators of FHWA and FTA, requesting reconsideration of
the conclusions set forth in the August 3, 2015, response. The Suburban Counties urged
that we “find the Metropolitan Council is not a properly constituted MPO, and take all
other necessary actions consistent with that finding.” This October letter reiterated many
of the same arguments put before FHWA and FTA previously, including the suggestion
that the grandfathering clause of 23 U.S.C. § 134(d)(4) does not apply to MPOs general-
ly, does not apply to the Metropolitan Council specifically, and does not apply to the
membership requirements imposed on MPOs by the same subsection.

11



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332
Suburban counties of the Twin Cities area
Page 4 of 5

With respect to the first argument, as explained in our joint policy guidance, FHWA and
FTA have determined that the grandfathering provision does still apply to any MPO that
(1) operates pursuant to a State law that was in effect on or before December 18, 1991;
(2) such State law has not been amended after December 18, 1991, with regard to the
structure or organization of the MPO; and (3) the MPO has not been designated or re-
designated after December 18, 1991. 79 Fed. Reg. 31,216. The agencies reiterated that
interpretation in a joint Notice of Proposed Rulemaking to implement MAP-21 revisions
to Federal metropolitan transportation planning requirements. 79 Fed. Reg. 31,784

(June 2, 2014). Subsequently, Congress enacted the FAST Act, P.L. 114-94, which in-
cluded amendments to 23 U.S.C. § 134 (FAST Act § 1201) and 49 U.S.C. § 5303 (FAST
Act § 3003). The FAST Act clarified requirements relating to an MPO’s designation or
selection of officials or representatives to an MPO in light of the FHWA/FTA Policy
Guidance and NPRM and public comments that the agencies received on these two doc-
uments, but did not amend the grandfathering provision. Congress’ enactment of these
statutory changes while leaving the grandfathering provision intact is a strong indication
that Congress concurs with the agencies’ interpretation of that provision. See, e.g., Davis
v. United States, 495 U.S. 472, 482 (1990) (“Congress’ reenactment of [a statute], using
the same language, indicates its apparent satisfaction with the prevailing interpretation of
the statute.”); Pierce v. Underwood, 487 U.S. 552, 566-68 (1988).

Second, the Suburban Counties disagreed with the FHWA and FTA regional offices’
conclusion that the State law changes were not substantial enough to “require a redesig-
nation” and so did not require the Metropolitan Council to come into compliance with
23 U.S.C. § 134(d)(2). As addressed in the FHWA/FTA Policy Guidance, an MPO is no
longer grandfathered from current Federal board structuring requirements if either the
MPO redesignates or changes in State law affect the structure or organization of the
MPO. Bearing in mind this distinction between the standards for the grandfathering pro-
vision and redesignation, we conclude that neither of these standards is implicated here.

We reviewed the amendments to the laws governing the Metropolitan Council cited in
your October 1, 2015, letter. In summary, the amendments: (1) changed the MPO from a
State administrative agency to a public corporation and political subdivision of the State’;
(2) changed the term length of MPO members*; (3) allowed the Metropolitan Council to
“hold, use, and dispose of”” grant funds without depositing the money into the State
Treasury’; and (4) changed provisions regarding the Metropolitan Council districts which
have changed to represent the population changes from the Federal decennial census,
although the number of districts remains the same.®

3 Minn. Stat. §473.123, subd . 1 (1994); Minn. Laws 1994 c. 628-S.F. No. 2015, Sec. 4.
4 Minn. Stat. § 473.123, subd. 2a. (1994).

5 Minn. Stat. § 473.129, subd. 4 (1994); Minn. Laws 1994 c. 628-S.F. No. 2015, Sec. 39.
® Minn. Stat. § 473.129, subd. 3 (1994).

12



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332
Suburban counties of the Twin Cities area

Page 5 of 5

In our opinion, these amendments would not require the Metropolitan Council to redesig-
nate. Our regulations require redesignation of an MPO whenever the existing MPO pro-
poses to make (1) a substantial change in the representative proportion of voting mem-
bers, or (2) a substantial change in the decisionmaking authority or responsibility of the
MPO, or in decisionmaking procedures established under MPO by-laws. 23 C.F.R.
450.310(k). FHWA and FTA’s regulations also identify the changes to an MPO that do
not require a redesignation as long as they do not trigger a substantial change as de-
scribed in 450.310(k). 23 C.F.R. 450.310(1). We find that the regional offices correctly
analyzed the amendments under these regulations in determining that the amendments do
not substantially change the Metropolitan Council’s representation proportions or deci-
sionmaking procedures such that redesignation is necessary.

Even if a change in State law would not require redesignation, the MPO no longer would
be grandfathered if that change affected the structure or organization of the MPO. We
conclude that none of the amendments you cite affect the structure or organization of the
Metropolitan Council such that it would no longer be grandfathered from the structure
requirements of 23 U.S.C. 134(d)(2). None of these changes, including, (1) changing the
terms of the Council’s members, (2) characterizing the Council as a public corporation
instead of an administrative agency, (3) allowing the Council to “hold, use, and dispose
of” grant funds without depositing the money into the State Treasury, and (4) other mis-
cellaneous and minor statutory changes, directly affect in any material way the structure
or organization of the Council itself, and they clearly cannot be deemed substantial
changes. The core of the Metropolitan Council’s structure and organization remains the
same as it was in 1991, notwithstanding these minor legislative amendments.

In sum, we concur with the findings in the August 3, 2015, regional offices’ response and
decline to reverse their decision. If you have further questions, please do not hesitate to
contact us.

Sincerely,

A0,

Gregory G. Nadeau, Administrator
Federal Highway Administration

Therese McMillan, Acting Administrator
Federal Transit Administration

13



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

FIGURE 2: METRO TRANSIT 5307 RECIPIENT DESIGNATION

14



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

@ Metro Transit

September 18, 2013

Ms. Marisol Simén

Regional Administrator

Federal Transit Administration, Region V
200 West Adams Street, Suite #320
Chicago, IL 60606

RE: Governor’s Designation of Section 5307 Recipients
Dear Ms. Simodn:

Enclosed are the documents required for designation of Metropolitan Council/Metro Transit as
the Minneapolis-St. Paul, Minnesota — Wisconsin UZA designated Section 5307 recipient.

These enclosures include:
o Governor of MN Designation Letter
e  MPO Certified Resolution of Concurrence
e Area Transit Agencies Concurrences

The required legal opinion has been filed in TEAM and verified by Cecelia Comito, FTA
Regional Counsel, as sufficient for the 5307 designation process.

I have sent a scan of all of these documents and this letter to Bill Wheeler via e-mail. He will let
me know what I should post in TEAM.

If you have any questions or comments, please don’t hesitate to contact me.
Best regards,

Grarfts’Manager
Metropolitan Council/Metro Transit

cc: William Wheeler, FTA Region V — e-copy

Enclosures

A service of the Metropolitan Council

560 Sixth Avenue North Minneapolis, Minnesota 55411-4398 15 (612) 349-7400 Transit Info 373-3333 TTY 341-0140

http://www.metrotransit.org An Equal Opportunity Employer



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

STATE OF MINNESOTA

Office of Governor Mark Dayton
130 State Capitol ¢ 75 Rev. Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Boulevard ¢ Saint Paul, MN 55155

August 28, 2013

Ms. Marisol Simon

Regional Administrator

Federal Transit Administration Region V
200 West Adams Street, Suite #320
Chicago, Illinois 60606

Re: Governor’s Designation of Section 5307 Recipients
Dear Ms. Simon:

The purpose of this letter is to fulfill the requirement in Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) Circular 9030.1D “Urbanized Area Formula Program:
Program Guidance and Application Instructions™ to document the designation of
recipients of Section 5307 funding in the state of Minnesota.

[ designate the Metropolitan Council as recipient of FTA Section 5307
funding for the following Urbanized Area (UZA) over 1,000,000 in population:
Minneapolis — St. Paul, Minnesota — Wisconsin.

This UZA is in a Transportation Management Area. Therefore, additional
documents are attached containing concurrence from the public transportation
providers as well as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO). An opinion
certifying the legal capacity of the Metropolitan Council to perform the functions
of designated recipients of Section 5307 funds has been filed with FTA under
separate cover.

Thank you.
Sincerely,
Mark Day#on
Governor
Attachments
Voice: (651) 201-3400 or (800) 657-3717 Fax: (651) 797-1850 MN Relay (800) 627-3529
Website: http:/ /governor.state.mn.us 16 An Equal Opportunity Employer

Printed on recycled paper containing 15% post consumer material and state government printed



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

Metropolitan Council
390 North Robert Street, St. Paul, MN §5101-1634
Phone (651)602-1000 TDD (651)291-0904 FAX (651)602-1550 Metro Info (651)602-1888

RESOLUTION 2013-11

Resolution of Metropolitan Council Agreement to serve as the Designated Recipient
for Federal Transit Administration Section 5307 (Urbanized Area Formula Program) Funding

Whereas, FTA Circular 9030.1D states that for UZAs with 200,000 or more in population, FTA apportions
funds to a UZA and the funds flow to the recipient designated by the Governor to apply for and receive
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funds, and

Whereas, FTA Circular 9030.1D further states that for UZAs with 200,000 or more in population,
documentation of concurrence in the selection of the designated recipient by the providers of publicly
owned public transportation service in the UZA, and an appropriately certified resolution of the
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) concurring in the designation, must be attached to Governor’s
written notice to the FTA of the designated recipient, and

Whereas, the Minneapolis/St Paul UZA has a population of over 200,000 population, and the Metropolitan
Council, or its predecessor transit operating agency, the Metropolitan Transit Commission, has served as
the recipient designated by the Governor of Minnesota to apply for and receive FTA funds for over 40
years, and

Whereas, the Metropolitan Council has developed the complex systems necessary to satisfy FTA
requirements, has been through all of the necessary FTA reviews and audits, and is willing to continue
serving as the designated recipient, and

Whereas, maintaining this designation will ensure that federal funding continues to be made available to
all transit providers in the region in a timely manner, and

Whereas, the Metropolitan Council was designated as the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the
Minneapolis/St Paul region in 1973 by Governor Wendell Anderson.

Now, therefore, be it resolved, that the Metropolitan Council, as the major provider of publicly owned
public transportation service in the Minneapolis/St Paul UZA, concurs with the Governor's selection of the
Metropolitan Council as the designated recipient of Section 5307 Urbanized Area Formula Program grants

to provide public transportation service in the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area, and
Be it further resolved, that the Metropolitan Council, as the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the
Minneapolis/St Paul region, concurs with this designation.

Adopted this 14th day of August, 2013.

Soer. Pl Gl X

Susan Haigh, Chair Emily Getty ouncll Recor ing Secretary

17



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution presented
to and adopted by the Metropolitan Council at a duly authorized meeting held on the 14th day of
August, 2013, as shown by the minutes of the meeting in my possession.

VI S

Emily Getty, Cpuncil Recording ?ecretary

18



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

Minnesota Valley Transit Authority

August 13, 2013

Ms. Marisol Simon

Regional Administrator

Federal Transit Administration, Region 5
200 West Adams St., Suite 320

Chicago, IL 60606

RE:  Concurrence with Designation of Section 5307 Direct Recipient

Dear Ms. Simon:

The Minnesota Valley Transit Authority (MVTA) is proud to be a partner with the Metropolitan Council in
addressing the transit needs of our region. The purpose of this letter is to fulfill the requirement in Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) Circular 9030.1D Urbanized Area Formula Program: Program Guidance and
Application Instructions to document the designation of a direct recipient of Section 5307 funding in the
State of Minnesota, Minneapolis-St. Paul Urbanized Area.

MVTA concurs with the designation of the Metropolitan Council as the direct recipient of Section 5307
funding for the Minneapolis-St. Paul Urbanized Area. However, we would also like to offer a couple of
comments.

e It would be helpful if the FTA provided enhanced guidance to subrecipients regarding changes, new
issues, etc. We want to be proficient regarding the regulations; perhaps there could be more training
of the direct recipient (Metropolitan Council) or of subrecipients, to help in this area. This may also
help us better understand the calculations used in generating the 5307 funding amounts.

e The MVTA would also prefer to have a more productive system of providing staff comments about
projects. In the past, we have attempted to document comments on the designated FTA web-site; all
of the MVTA comments have been stripped out. Only those by the Metropolitan Council have been
actually submitted. Further, we have been told we cannot talk to FTA personnel, and would much
prefer a more collaborative approach.

Thank you for your consideration. If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact
our Executive Director Beverley Miller at bmiller@mvta.com or 952-882-7501.

Sincerely,

ooy Moo

Gary Hansen
Chair, MVTA Board of Directors

¢: MVTA Board
Susan Haigh, Chair, Metropolitan Council
Beverley Miller, Executive Director

100 East Highway 13 Burnsville, Minnesota 55337 www.fi@a.com MVTA office 952-882-7500 fax 952-882-7600




SOUTHWEST TRANSIT

13500 Technology Drive, Eden Prairie, MN 55344
952-949-2BUS + www.swtransit.org

SOUTHWEST TRANSIT

August 21, 2013
Metropolitan Council
Ms. Marisol Simon

Regional Administrator\Federal Transit Administration, Region 5 AUG 30 2013
200 West Adams St., Suite 320 Recelved Chai
Chicago, IL 60606 | eceived Chair's Office

RE: Concurrence with Designation of Section 5307 Direct Recipient
Dear Ms. Simon:

The purpose of this letter is to fulfill the requirement in Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular
9030.ID Urbanized Area Formula Program: Program Guidance and Application Instructions to document
the designation of a direct recipient of Section 5307 funding in the State of Minnesota, Minneapolis-St.
Paul Urbanized Area.

The SouthWest Transit Commission concurs with the designation of the Metropolitan Council as the
direct recipient of Section 5307 funding for the Minneapolis-St. Paul Urbanized Area. However, we
would like to comment on the current situation in our region.

As you are aware, The Metropolitan Council not only operates/controls our region’s largest transit
operations (Metro Transit; Metro Mobility; and Metro Transit Services), they also control/act as our
region’s Metropolitan Planning Organization. We believe this relationship makes it extremely difficult
for the Metropolitan Council to act in an unbiased manner when it comes to developing, implementing,
and enforcing regional policies; and distributing state and federal funding.

This is not only the opinion of SouthWest Transit, but in a January 2011 report presented to the
Minnesota Legislature by its Legislative Auditor stated “the governance of transit in the Twin Cities
region is complex and fraught with distrust, and coordination among the many transit organization in
the region has been difficult. Because of the Metropolitan Council’s structure, the Council lacks
adequate credibility and accountability among stakeholders”.

The Metropolitan Council continues to formulate policies and controls to meet their needs, and is not
truly representative of the needs or desires of the entire region. This inconsistency has been played out
in recent years in the determination of funding eligibility, prioritization of operating corridors, and with
competitive contracting.

Finally, the Metropolitan Council continues to view and treat its suburban partners as an administrative
nuisance rather than a regional partner. We are not recognized in its publications, web site, or even in
the annual ‘State of the Region” address, yet our organization, SouthWest Transit, has and continues to
receive national recognition for its innovative, safe, and cost effective operations. It appears if the
Metropolitan Council would rather view suburban providers and their oversight boards as “for-hire
contractors” rather than true governmental partners.

20



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

Because of this, SouthWest Transit is requesting that the FTA take a more proactive approach in dealing
and communicating with our region’s sub-recipients. We have tried this approach in the past, only to be
reprimanded by the Metropolitan Council staff and told by the FTA they do not deal directly with sub-
recipients. The FTA directs us back to the Metropolitan Council, which the majority of the time is the
organization we have the issue with, or question their interpretation of the federal rules and/or policies.

We would very much appreciate a more collaborative approach with the FTA, and it would also be
helpful if the FTA provided direct/enhanced guidance to sub-recipients regarding changes and/or
directives.

Thank you for your consideration. If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to
contact our Chief Executive Officer Len Simich at 952-974-3101 or at Isimich@swtransit.org.

cc: Susan Haigh, Chair, Metropolitan Council
Pat Born, Regional Administrator, Metropolitan Council
Representative Erik Paulsen, Member of Congress
Board Members, SouthWest Transit Commission
Len Simich, CEQ, SouthWest Transit

21



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

4646 Dakota Street SE
Prior Lake, MN 55372

August 14, 2013

Ms. Marisol Simon

Regional Administrator

Federal Transit Administration, Region 5
200 West Adams Street, Suite #320
Chicago, IL 60606

RE: Concurrence with Designation of Section 5307 Direct Recipient
Dear Ms. Simon:

The purpose of this letter is to fulfill the requirement in Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular
9030.1D Urbanized Area Formula Program: Program Guidance and Application Instructions to
document the designation of a direct recipient of Section 5307 funding in the State of Minnesota,
Minneapolis-St. Paul Urbanized Area.

The City of Prior Lake concurs with the designation of the Metropolitan Council as the direct recipient of
Prior Lake’s Section 5307 funding for the Minneapolis-St. Paul Urbanized Area.

The City of Prior Lake further requests the FTA copy any communication regarding the transmittal of
funds to the Metropolitan Council to:

Jane Kansier, Assistant City Manager
City of Prior Lake

4646 Dakota Street SE

Prior Lake, MN 55372

This will assist Prior Lake in tracking transit funds for our system.

If you need additional information, please contact Assistant City Manager Jane Kansier at
ikansier@cityofprigrlake.com or at 952-447-9812. Thank you for supporting public transit.

cC: ’/Susan Haigh, Chair, Metropolitan Council
Pat Born, Regional Administrator, Metropolitan Council

Phone 952.447.9800 / Fax 952.497.4245 / www.cityofpriorlake.com



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

Cityof
¥ Maple Grove

12800 Arbor Lakes Parkway, P.O. Box 1180, Maple Grove, MN 55311-6180  763-494-6000

August 6, 2013

Ms. Marisol Simén

Regional Administrator

Federal Transit Administration, Region 5
200 West Adams Street, Suite #320
Chicago, IL 60606

RE:  Concurrence with Designation of Section 5307 Direct Recipient

Dear Ms. Simon:

The purpose of this letter is to fulfill the requirement in Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
Circular 9030.1D Urbanized Area Formula Program: Program Guidance and Application
Instructions to document the designation of a direct recipient of Section 5307 funding in the
State of Minnesota, Minneapolis-St. Paul Urbanized Area.

The City of Maple Grove and Maple Grove Transit concurs with the designation of the
Metropolitan Council as the direct recipient of Section 5307 funding for the Minneapolis-St. Paul
Urbanized ;}rea.

Sincerq)’{é ;

Alan A. Madsen
City Administrator

o Mark Steffenson, Mayor, City of Maple Grove
Mike Opatz, Transit Administrator, City of Maple Grove
Susan Haig, Chair, Metropolitan Council
Pat Born, Regional Administrator, Metropolitan Council

“Serving Today, Slgaping Tomorrow”
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

SHAKOPEE
September 4, 2013

Ms. Marisol Simon

Regional Administrator, Federal Transit Administration, Region 5
200 West Adams Street, Suite #320

Chicago, IL 60606

RE: Concurrence with Designation of Section 5307 Direct Recipient
Dear Ms. Simon;

The purpose of this letter is to fulfill the requirement in Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular 030.1D
Urbanized Area Formula Program: Program Guidance and Application Instructions to document the designation of a
direct recipient of Section 5307 funding in the State of Minnesota, Minneapolis-St. Paul Urbanized Area. The City of
Shakopee concurs with the designation of the Metropolitan Council as the direct recipient of Plymouth’s Section
5307 funding for the Minneapolis-5t. Paul Urbanized Area.

The City of Shakopee requests that the FTA copy the Shakopee Community Development Director on any
communications regarding the transmittal of funds to the Metropolitan Council. This will assist the City of Shakopee
to track transit funds for our system. Any communications should be copied to the following contact and address;

R. Michael Leek, Esq. /Community Development Director
City of Shakopee

129 Holmes Sireet

Shakopee, MIN 55379

E-mail: mleek@ci.shakopee.mn.us

Phone: {952) 233-9346

In the mid-1980s the City of Shakopee elected to exercise its right to provide public transit. 1t was empowered by the
Minnesota Legislature in 1981 to create a suburban transit authority separate from the Metropolitan Transit
Commission, now Metropolitan Council. The City of Plymouth transit system provides over 100,000 rides annually on
express commuter and local bus services.

If you need additional information, please contact Community Development Director Michael Leek. Thank you for
supporting public transit.

Bd Tabk,yor
City of Shakopee, MN

Cc: Vﬁsan Haigh, Chair, Metropolitan Council
Pat Born, Regional Administrator, Metropolitan Council

COMMUNITY PRIDE SINCE 1857

129 [odmes Street Souh + Shakopee, Mimmesota « 333791331 = 932-23DMBOG - FAN 932233380« wwweishakopee.mn.ug



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332
UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA

Twin Cities Campus University Services 317 Morrifl Hall
100 Church Street S.E.
Minneapolis, MN 55433

Office: 612-624-3557
Fax: 612-626-2278

Olffice of the Vice President

August 22, 2013 Metropolitan Council
AUG 26 2013

Marisol Simon .
Received Chairs Office

Regional Administrator

Federal Transit Administration, Region 5
Suite 320

200 West Adams Street

Chicago IL 60606

RE: Concurrence with Designation of Section 5307 Direct Recipient
Dear Ms. Simon:

The purpose of this letter is to fulfill the requirement in Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) Circular 9030.1D Urbanized Area Formula Program. Program
Guidance and Application Instructions to document the designation of a direct
recipient of Section 5307 funding in the State of Minnesota, Minneapolis-St. Paul
Urbanized Area.

The University of Minnesota concurs with the designation of the Metropolitan
Council as the direct recipient of Section 5307 funding for the Minneapolis-St.
Paul Urbanized Area.

Pamela Wheelock
Vice President, University Services

cc: Susan Haigh, Chair, Metropolitan Council

25



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332
etropolitan Council

JUL 25 2013

Received Chair's Office

14600 Minnetonka Boulevard  Minnetonka, MN 55345 952-939-8200 Fax 952-939-8244

July 22, 2013

Ms. Marisol Simén

Regional Administrator

Federal Transit Administration, Region 5
200 West Adams Street, Suite 320
Chicago, IL 60606

Re: Concurrence with Designation of Section 5307 Direct Recipient
Dear Ms. Simén:

The purpose of this letter is to fulfill the requirement in the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) Circular 9030.1D, Urbanized Area Formula Program: Program
‘Guidance and Application Instructions, to document the designation of a direct recipient
of Section 5307 funding in the State of Minnesota, Minneapolis-St. Paul Urbanized
Area.

The City of Minnetonka concurs with the designation of the Metropolitan Council as the
direct recipient of Section 5307 funding for the Minneapolis-St. Paul Urbanized Area.

Sincerely,

Loy A Lol

Terry Schneider
Mayor

Minnetonka...wheredfyality is our nature



MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

@ Plﬁtﬁgut‘h

Adding Quality to Life

August 5, 2013

Ms. Marisol Simon

Regional Administrator

Federal Transit Administration, Region 5
200 West Adams Street, Suite #320
Chicago, IL 60606

RE: Concurrence with Designation of Section 5307 Direct Recipient

Dear Ms. Simon:

The purpose of this letter is to fulfill the requirement in Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular
9030.1D Urbanized Area Formula Program: Program Guidance and Application Instructions to document
the designation of a direct recipient of Section 5307 funding in the State of Minnesota, Minneapolis-St. Paul
Urbanized Area.

The City of Plymouth concurs with the designation of the Metropolitan Council as the direct recipient of
Plymouth’s Section 5307 funding for the Minneapolis-St. Paul Urbanized Area.

The City of Plymouth requests that the FTA copy the Plymouth Transit Manager concerning any
communication regarding the transmittal of funds to the Metropolitan Council. This will assist Plymouth to
track transit funds for our system.

Sarah Hellekson, Plymouth Transit Manager, 3400 Plymouth Boulevard, Plymouth, MN 55447

In 1984, the City of Plymouth elected to exercise its right to provide public transit. It was empowered by the
Minnesota Legislature in 1981 to create a suburban transit authority separate from the Metropolitan Transit
Commission, now Metropolitan Council. The City of Plymouth transit system provides 500,000 rides
annually on express commuter bus, local bus, and dial-a-ride services.

If you need additional information, please contact Plymouth Transit Manager, Sarah Hellekson at
shellekson@plymouthmn.gov or 763-509-5052. Thank you for supporting public transit.

[Tkt

elli Slavik, Mayor
City of Plymouth

Cc:  Susan Haigh, Chair, Metropolitan Council
Pat Born, Regional Administrator, Metropolitan Council

3400 Plymouth Blvd « Plymouth, Minnesota 55447-1482 « Tel: 763-509-5000 « www. plymouthmn gov 4

27



% w, MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332

S T C R O l )(// GO U/'\ITY Planning & Land Infﬁ:::lit(ij;:
J D\Visconsin 4

Resource Management

Innovation Through Cooperation

Community Development Department

7/19/2013

Ms. Marisol Simon

Regional Administrator Metropolitan :
Federal Transit Administration, Region 5 “oiinell
200 West Adams Street, Suite #320 JUL 28 2013

Chicago, IL 60606

Received Chair's Office
Re: Concurrence with Designation of Section 5307 Direct Recipient

Dear Ms. Simon:

In 2012 the US Census Bureau released the urbanized area boundaries resulting from the 2010
Census. For the first time, a small portion of St. Croix County, Wisconsin, about 2 square mile in the
Town of St. Joseph, with a 2010 population of 276 people, was included in the Twin Cities urbanized
area (map attached).

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular 9030.1D detailing rules for Section 5307 funding states
that when a UZA extends into more than one state and the public transportation providers are also
located in more than one state, more than one governor will participate in the process to designate a
recipient. There is no public transit, nor any public transportation providers within the Town of St.
Joseph, Wisconsin. Therefore, the requirement that the Governor of Wisconsin must participate in
the designation would not apply.

The purpose of this letter is to document that St. Croix County, Wisconsin concurs with the
designation of the Metropolitan Council by the Governor of Minnesota as the direct recipient of
Section 5307 funding for the Minneapolis-St. Paul, MN/WI Urbanized Areas.

Sincerely,

Een c@f?fz«__

Ellen Denzer,

Community Development Director
www.sccwi.us/cdd

715.386-4673
Ellen.denzer@co.saint-croix.wi.us

cc: Patrick Thompson, County Administrator

Enclosure

Phone 715.386.4680 Government Center, 1101 Carmichael Road, Hudson, Wl 54016 Fax 715.386.4686
www.sccwi.us/cdd www.facebook. con%cro:xcountvw: cdd@co.saint-croix.wi.us




HOULTON MnDOT Agreement #: 1029332
BOUNDARY ONLY - function is for illustration PENDING

HOULTON

\\“‘m

e e i e

Legend
Existing Planned® Other
N =t - Principal Arterial Rallroads
== v MinorAfterial  [7771 | akes, Rivers, Sireams
Collsclor City and Village Boundary
W E e Local Urbantzed Area
0 0.175 0.35 0.7 T e g e ta . : Other surrounding urbanized areas
[— ' e Miles “HOTE Al planned route DMN“
$ looutons » spproximabons ey __J-W*l Boundary
2Q
Tha inforaztion on berse =t ad was Craated ol Wt offical use of the Whscons s =J ww—dn—nﬂ#mﬁ

om Thess mape
Deparrem of Tranaportae|  #Esar wpa, white mof prohfbAed, Is v sole respoms ity of tha e
T oty S o oy o e ol WOGT busioass. p=y i




Transportation Advisory Board
of the Metropolitan Council of the Twin Cities

Information Item

DATE: October 5, 2017

TO: TAC-Planning

PREPARED BY: Katie White, Senior Planner (651-602-1716)

SUBJECT: 2018 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) Revisions

The 2018 Unified Planning Work Program was recommended for adoption by TAC-
Planning on July 13, by TAC on August 2, and by TAB on August 16. Since then, FHWA
has provided feedback that has resulted in significant changes to the narrative portions
of the document. There are a variety of typo edits, substantial changes to Task B-3, and
a new table on page five to tie the TMA certification review to the UPWP. The budgetary
values in the UPWP have not changed. It is expected that the 2019 UPWP will contain
several more changes in content, as well as structural changes.

390 North Robert St., St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-1805 (651) 602-1000 Fax (651) 602-1739



2018 TRANSPORTATION
UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM FOR
THE TWIN CITIES METROPOLITAN AREA

A

METROPOLITAN
C OUNG G I L

September 2017



Metropolitan Council

390 Robert Street, St. Paul, Minnesota 55101

Metropolitan Council Members

Adam Duininck Chair

Katie Rodriguez District 1
Lona Schreiber District 2
Jennifer Munt District 3

Deb Barber District 4
Steve Elkins District 5

Gail Dorfman District 6
Gary L. Cunningham District 7
Cara Letofsky District 8
Edward Reynoso District 9
Marie McCarthy District 10
Sandy Rummel District 11
Harry Melander District 12
Richard Kramer District 13
Jon Commers District 14
Steven T. Chéavez District 15
Wendy Wulff District 16
Public Information 651-602-1500
TTY 651-291-0904
Email public.info@metc.state.mn.us
Website www.metrocouncil.org

The preparation of this report has been funded in part by the U.S. Department of
Transportation, Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit Administration.
The Contents of this document reflect the views of the authors who are responsible
for the facts or accuracy of the data presented herein. The contents do not
necessarily reflect the official views or policies of the U.S. Department of
Transportation. The report does not constitute a standard, specification, or
regulation.



mailto:public.info@metc.state.mn.us

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. INTRODUCTION TO THE UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM.......ccoonsumsursursessessnnas 11
A, INTFOAUCTION ...ceeeeeiiiiiiiiiieeeeessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssnnnns 11
B.  Organization Of the UPWP..........cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiireinninninene s nsssssse e sssss e e s s sssss e e s s ssssssasssse e s s ssssssnnns 2
C. Planning EMPhasis Aras .....cciviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiissisiisisiisssssissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 33
0 =Y - =0 ] T =T 33
E. Explanation of Fund Allocation, Indirect Costs and Local Contributions.........cccccevviiiiiiiiniiinininninnnn, 33
I o 14 Vo1V T o oo [ oy TNt 44
G. Schedule of ONGOING WOIK.......cceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeemmmmseeseessssessssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssnsnsnnnnns 55
H.  TMA Certification REVIEW ....cccceeeiiiiiiiiiccccccicceceesrerrnrsrnirnrn s se e s se s e s s s s s e e e e s e e s s s s s s s s ssssssssssessssessesssssnsnsnnanns 55
II. WORK ACTIVITIES....cioistimsursumsunssssssssssssssssssssssssassssssssssssssssssssssnssnssnsssssssssssssssssssnssnssnssnssnssssssans 88
A. PLANNING AND PROGRAMMING PROCESS ......ccocueirisunmeisssnnniiissnneessssnneissssneesssssnessssssnesssssssesssssnessssssnesssssnns 88
B. COMPREHENSIVE AND SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING .....ccccoovueiiinureiiinneenissneessisssnesssssnesssnnes 1212
C. RESEARCH AND TRAVEL FORECASTING.......cccitiiteiiinnreiiisiteeiisseesssssnessssssnessssssesssssssesssssssessssssesssssssessssns 2524
D. OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT .....outiiiiiiiiiiiittiiiiieesiisseessssseessssssesssssse s ssssssessssssesssssssessssssnessssssnesssnnnns 2928
E. AVIATION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING .......ceeiiiineeriiiineeiiisstesisssessisssessssssessssssesssssssesssssssesssssssssssnsnes 3130
III.  APPENDICES ......ccioitismsminisensnissmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssnsssssssssssssassssssnssassssssnssasses 3231
A. 2018 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM BUDGET ....cccceuuuiiiriimmmnnnniiiiirieennnnsiiiinnieessmsssiiinieesssssseeens 3231
B. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF PARTICIPANTS ....ccoiiivieiiiiiniiiiiieesisssneesssssnesssssesssssssesssssssesssssssessssnns 3433

C. FEDERAL FACTORS CONSIDERED BY PROGRAM ELEMENT ......ccceetteemmmmmmmmmmmmmmmneemnemmmmmmmmmmmmmmemssssssssssssssssens 3534



ACRONYMS

3-C - Continuing, Comprehensive, Cooperative

AA — Alternatives Analysis

ADA — Americans with Disabilities Act

AMPO — Association of Metropolitan Planning Organizations
APP — Aviation Policy Plan

ATM — Active Traffic Management

ATP — Area Transportation Partnership

BRT — Bus Rapid Transit

CAA — Clean Air Act

CAD - Clean Air Dialog

CAM - Clean Air Minnesota

CIMS — Corridor Investment Management Strategy

CIP — Capital Improvement Plan

CMP — Congestion Management Process

CPG - Consolidated Planning Grant

CSAH - County State Aid Highway

CTIB — Counties Transit Improvement Board

CTS - Center for Transportation Studies

DBE — Disadvantaged Business Enterprise

EA — Environmental Assessment

EAW — Environmental Assessment Worksheet

EIS — Environmental Impact Statement

EPA — Environmental Protection Agency

FAA — Federal Aviation Administration

FAST Act — Fixing American’s Surface Transportation Act
FHWA — Federal Highway Administration

FTA — Federal Transit Administration

HOT — High Occupancy Toll

HOV — High Occupancy Vehicle

ISTEA — Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act
ITS — Intelligent Transportation System

JARC — Job Access Reverse Commute

LRT — Light Rail Transit

MAC — Metropolitan Airports Commission

MAP-21 - Moving Ahead for Progress in the 215t Century
MHSIS — Metropolitan Highway System Investment Study
MnDOT — Minnesota Department of Transportation
MNIAQTPC — Minnesota Interagency Air Quality and Transportation Planning Committee
MPCA — Minnesota Pollution Control Agency

MPO — Metropolitan Planning Organization

MTS — Metropolitan Transportation Services

NEPA — National Environmental Policy Act

NHS — National Highway System

RTMC — Regional Traffic Management Center
SAFETEA-LU — Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act — A Legacy for Users
SAM — Safety and Mobility

SIP — State Implementation Plan

SPR - State Planning and Research

STIP — State Transportation Improvement Plan

STP — Surface Transportation Program

TAAC — Transportation Accessibility Advisory Committee
TAB — Transportation Advisory Board

TAC — Technical Advisory Committee

TBI — Travel Behavior Inventory

TED - Transportation and Economic Development

TH — Trunk Highway

TIP — Transportation Improvement Plan

TOD - Transit Oriented Development

UPWP — Unified Planning Work Program



[. INTRODUCTION TO THE UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM

A. Introduction

The Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) is a description and documentation of proposed
transportation and transportation-related planning activities in the Twin Cities metropolitan area
for 2018. The Metropolitan Council jurisdiction includes seven counties (see map on next page).
In addition, the 2010 Census identified developed areas of Wright and Sherburne counties
(primarily along the 1-94 and U.S. Highway 10 corridors) and a small portion of Houlton, Wisconsin
to be included in the urbanized area (UZA) for transportation planning purposes, though these
areas are not otherwise a part of the Metropolitan Council’s jurisdiction. For more information on
how the UPWP is used in the context of the activities of the Metropolitan Council, please
reference the 2012 Transportation Planning and Programming Guide.

The patrticipants in the UPWP include four agencies: the Metropolitan Council, the Minnesota
Department of Transportation (MNnDOT), Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA), and the
Metropolitan Airports Commission (MAC). (See Appendix B for roles and responsibilities of the
participants.) Since the 2018 UPWP also serves as the Metropolitan Council’s application for US
DOT transportation planning funds, the projects with Metropolitan Council participation are
demonstrated with staff hours and consultant costs to detail how $4 million of federal planning
money will be spent, along with 20 percent local match. The activities of the other agencies are
shown in narrative form only.

Many of the tasks are required by state or federal law, and are ongoing, including the TAC/TAB
committee process, or repeat on an annual or biennial cycle, such as the preparation of the TIP
and the regional solicitation. The Council’s 2040 Transportation Policy Plan was adopted in
January 2015. This long range transportation plan complements the region’s overall development
plan, the Thrive MSP 2040, which is mandated by state law and was updated in 2014. Much of
the Council’'s work in 2018 will be implementation of the principles of Thrive MSP 2040 and the
2040 Transportation Policy Plan, and work will conclude on the 2018 update of the TPP. The
UPWP projects have been reviewed for consistency with the existing Transportation Policy Plan.

Some studies that were begun in earlier years will continue into 2018, including implementation of
performance based planning, as required by the FAST Act, and many corridor/AA/DEIS studies.

The Metropolitan Council is committed to a proactive, effective public participation process, and
will use a variety of internal and external strategies including newsletters, telephone comment
lines, e-mail, website, on-line forum, media relations, social media, community meetings, public
hearings, and public information campaigns, in carrying out all of the work program activities. An
updated public participation process will be adopted in 2017 after two public comment periods and
considerable review and feedback from FHWA and MnDOT.


http://www.metrocouncil.org/Transportation/Publications-And-Resources/Transportation-Planning-and-Programming-Guide-2013.aspx

Metropolitan Council Jurisdiction

o=
Sherburne c
=
3
S
<
. °
Wright : Anoka ? 5
N \ \k '%
j 3
( 5
L &
] @
MPO Area X; g
/ o
d

Ramsey.

Washington

| T |
|

Dakota

A

0 5 10 20 Miles ' April 2014
L 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 J

B. Organization of the UPWP

The individual work activities and projects are divided into five major activities. They are:

Planning and Programming Process

Comprehensive and Surface Transportation Planning
Research and Travel Forecasting

Operations and Management

Aviation Transportation Planning

A comparison of the federal planning factors that apply to each element of the Unified Planning
Work Program is located in Appendix D.



C. Planning Emphasis Areas

The USDOT issued guidance in March 2015 requesting regional transportation planning to place
special attention on Planning Emphasis Areas. Various work tasks in the following sections
address these areas. A summary of each is below.

1. Models of Regional Planning Cooperation
The Metropolitan Council will continue to use the 3-C process to work with regional and statewide
partners in the development of plans and policies. The Metropolitan Council works in coordination
with the agencies listed above, as well as MnDOT’s Central Office, MNDOT’s Metro District, and
MnDOT’s District 3 through the Region 7W ATP process. There are no other MPOs within the Twin
Cities urbanized area.

2. Access to Essential Services
The Metropolitan Council has provided direction through Thrive MSP 2040 to work on issues of
equity, which include access to jobs and essential services. This goes beyond the environmental
justice executive order 12898 requirements that have traditionally been used as a baseline. For
more information on the background and intent of this direction, see Task B-8.

The Metropolitan Council will also continue to advance the goals of the Americans with Disabilities
Act through its work with local government partners, which was underway in mid-2017.

3. Transition to Performance-Based Planning and Programming
The Metropolitan Council has continued to advance performance based planning since MAP-21
became law. The 2040 Transportation Policy Plan will be updated and adopted in 2018 and will
include information relevant to the most recent rulemaking available. An updated MOU with MNnDOT
and public transit providers will be signed to formalize the cooperative process for performance
based planning.

D. Related Studies

In some years there are transportation studies underway in the region that are not included in the
UPWP since there are no federal transportation funds expended on the study, or federally funded
transportation staff of the Metropolitan Council are not involved to a significant level. No major
transportation studies are expected to be conducted in 2018 that are not mentioned in this UPWP.

E. Explanation of Fund Allocation, Indirect Costs and Local Contributions

1. Allocation of Federal Funds

Since 2002 the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and Federal Highway Administration
(FHWA) funds have come to the Metropolitan Council in the form of a “Consolidated Planning
Grant” (CPG) which recognizes the intermodal nature of urban transportation and allows
flexibility in planning for issues that frequently result in multimodal solutions. These CPG funds
are not used for aviation planning, which is conducted almost entirely with local (nonfederal)
dollars. The exception to this would be periodic special studies funded by Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) grants, which may occur in 2018 pending funding availability. This is also
true for the Right-of-way Acquisition Funds (RALF) program, which is funded with local dollars
but is included in Task D-4 in order to fully describe the work undertaken by Council planning
staff. These activities are included in the 2018 UPWP to illustrate the full work completed by
the Metropolitan Council; however the money spent on these activities is excluded from
federal funding as shown in the budget table.

2. Statement of Metropolitan Council Regarding Audits as required by 2 CFR 200.501 (b),

A non-Federal entity that expends $750,000 or more during the non-Federal entity’s fiscal
year in Federal awards must have a single audit conducted in accordance with § 200.514
3



Scope of audit except when it elects to have a program-specific audit conducted in
accordance with paragraph (c) of this section.

3. Metropolitan Council Cost Allocation Plan

Indirect costs budgeted in the Unified Planning Work Program for the Metropolitan Council
activities were developed in accordance with the Metropolitan Council’s cost allocation plan.
The cost allocation plan is in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200. The Metropolitan
Council’s cognizant agency is the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit
Administration. The Metropolitan Council annually submits a cost allocation plan.

4. Local Support

The local match shown with the activity descriptions in the following sections refer to dollar
contributions of the Metropolitan Council to provide a 20% local match the federal CPG grant.
The UPWP budget does not include the contributions made by counties, cities and other
agencies that regularly participate in the 3-C process through the TAB and TAC advisory
committees. Staff, elected officials and citizen members of the TAB and TAC committees
number more than 150 persons, most of whom meet monthly in regular committee working
sessions. Such representatives put in additional hours dealing with written material prepared
for their review and response. It is impossible to accurately calculate the hundreds of
thousands of local dollars thus contributed to state and federal project planning for the region.
The participation of such persons has been freely given by their respective employers as their
contribution to local-regional cooperation. Because these local contributions of time and
consultation help to advance federal and state funded highway and transit projects, it is
appropriate to acknowledge this further contribution to the 3-C process for the region.

F. Carryover Policy

In a November 19, 2014, memo (“Carryover policy for Unprogrammed PL and 5303 Funds —
Amended”), MnDOT transmitted the adopted policy for all MPOs to document their expectations
for funds that are not budgeted in the UPWP year. As of mid-2017 MnDOT is drafting a revised
policy that expects MPOs to use their allocated funds in the year appropriated rather than allowing
MPOs to carry over funds.

In years that the Council doesn’t spend the full balance of available federal funds, carryover funds
accumulate. Previously this money had been held in reserve in order to fund the Council’s largest
project, the Travel Behavior Inventory (TBI). In 2016 the Council conducted a study of how best to
re-organize the TBI into an ongoing program of data collection activities instead of conducting it
only once every ten years (as described in Activity C of the 2018 UPWP). This balance is
currently $1.8 million and is likely to increase after the 20176 audit by an amount under $100,000.
The resolution included in the approval of this 2018 UPWP allocates $1 million of this money for
initiating the new TBI data collection program with spending to occur through 2022. This project
will get under contract in 2017 with most of the work occurring in 2018.

The Council will draw down an additional $614,270 from the carryover funds in 2018. This will
bring the total funds held in reserve to a significantly lower number than in recent years.

The local match required to meet the carryover funds will be readily available since the Council
has dedicated revenue sources from year to year from local taxes and MVST revenues. The
Council is committed to matching the 20% requirement in order to best meet planning needs in
2018. The Council anticipates there will be sufficient funds to cover the local match in whichever
year the UPWP funds are budgeted.



G. Weﬂe@e{mnwng—Beyend%Schedule of anomq Work

Mgespeﬁﬂqese-bemg—ﬂqelpave%ehawepm;emg;y—GBB—The 2018 Update to the 2040

Transportation Policy Plan will include a Work Program with likely studies to be completed over
the next four year period. At the time of this writing, the 2018 Update is currently under
development and a full list of projects continuing into 2019 is not available.

The procurement process can last several months and unforeseen circumstances may affect the
project timelines once the projects are underway.

H. TMA Certification Review

The MPO functions of the Metropolitan Council are reviewed by FHWA and FTA every four

vears through a Transportation Management Area (TMA) Certification Review. This was last

completed in November 2016 and fourteen recommendations were provided in the final report

to the Council. The recommendations are listed below along with where to find work

associated with each item in this document, and with a brief status update.

Recommendation

Status

UPWP Location

Improve and update the
MOU between the Council

Updated language has been

As this activity is concluding

agreed upon and should be

in 2017, there is no

and MnDOT

approved by the Council and

reference in the 2018

MnDOT by December 2017.

UPWP.

Evaluate and recognize the

A significant revision to the

Task A-1

UPWP is a critical planning

2019 UPWP is expected.

document by making
significant changes.

Collaboratively develop the

This is underway as part of

Performance-based

required performance
metrics/targets with the
planning partners for
inclusion in the updated
MTP.

the TPP Update.

planning is Task B-2. Work
related to the TPP Update is
in Task B-1.

Integrate scenario planning

The TPP Update will

into the MTP for investments,

continue to include a fiscally

Work related to the TPP
Update is in Task B-1.

projects, and/or
population/employment
distribution alternatives.

constrained scenario and an
increased revenue scenario.
Forecasted demographics
will remain the same.

The parameters for major
capital project selection are

The TPP Update will seek to

Work related to the TPP

more clearly identify and

Update is in Task B-1.

unclear. Improve procedures

describe how the Council’s

and transparency of
rating/selecting capital

projects.

investment studies relate to
one another and are used to
select the region’s major




mobility improvement
projects.

The MTP Financial Plan does

The TPP Update will more

Work related to the TPP

not identify regionally
significant projects and
categories of projects in the

clearly identify major
highway preservation
projects along with mobility

year of expenditure
throughout the 20 vears of

projects and will provide the
expected expenditures for

the plan. Improve procedures

these projects in the first 10

and transparency of
rating/selecting capital

projects.

years of the plan.

Update is in Task B-1.

Move projects that do not
have federal funding
committed from years one
and two of the TIP to years
three or four.

This was complete in the

As this activity is complete in

first quarter of 2017.

2017, it will not appear in the
2018 UPWP.

The TIP lacks clarity on
change procedures and year

This was complete in the

As this activity is complete in

second quarter of 2017.

of expenditure dollars.

2017, it will not appear in the
2018 UPWP.

Complete a system-level
assessment to determine the

The Council, MnDOT, and

A Regional Solicitation

FHWA will meet on this

level of
performancel/investment
need for the Regional
Solicitation.

issue.

Evaluation is listed in Task
A-3 to address this.

Update and enhance the
Public Participation Plan.

This was complete with the

As this activity is complete in

assistance of FHWA in
2017.

2017, it will not appear in the
2018 UPWP.

Analyze TPP impacts on
disadvantaged communities,

The Metropolitan Council will

Task B-1 contains work

work with the USDOT to

overall regional populations

identify best practices and

related to the TPP, and Task
B-9 contains additional work

in terms of travel distances,

examples from other MPOs

on equity and environmental

and times & air quality by
mode.

to meet this
recommendation.

justice concerns.

Improve the documentation

This work is underway in

Task B-1 contains work

of consultation with federally

2017 and will be completed

related to the TPP Update.

recognized tribes,
documenting procedures for
environmental mitigation and
coordination in support of the
TPP, and updating natural
and historic resources in the
TPP.

in 2018 with the new TPP.

Follow the PA Intersection

The Council will continue to

Council work on local

Conversion Study by more

work with local partners and

highway corridor projects is

6




detailed corridor planning
studies that look at lower-
cost alternatives. Explore
options that can be quickly

MnDOT on corridor studies

described in Task B-4 and

as they are initiated. In 2017

Highway Planning in Task B-

FHWA deemed this
recommendation to be

and realistically funded and

completed.

constructed.

5.

Improve the CMP to fully
comply with 23 CFR 450.322

A CMP Advisory Committee

Task B-3 contains significant

has been formed and will

new information in the 2018

and the 8-step federal
process.

direct this work.

UPWP with regard to this
recommendation.




. WORK ACTIVITIES

A.  PLANNING AND PROGRAMMING PROCESS
TASK A-1 PLANNING PROGRAM SUPPORT AND ADMINISTRATION

PURPOSE: To provide planning and administrative support to the metropolitan transportation
planning process of the Council, MNnDOT, and others pursuant to state and federal statutes and
regulations. The process is required under federal law to certify the region for continued federal
transportation funding.

ACTIVITIES: The transportation planning process provides a forum for regional decision making
and produces plans and programs for all transportation modes. Process participants are the
Metropolitan Council, the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA), the Minnesota Department
of Transportation (MnDOT), the Metropolitan Airports Commission (MAC), local units of
government, transit providers and residents. The Transportation Advisory Board (TAB) and its
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) are the main forums where the various transportation
agencies and interests participate in regional transportation discussions, as well as transportation
plan preparation and implementation. The Transportation Advisory Board usually meets monthly
on the 3" Wednesday at 12:30 p.m. and TAC on the first Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. For specific
information of the TAB, TAC, or Transportation Committee meetings, go to
www.metrocouncil.org/Council-Meetings/Committees. Details on roles and responsibilities are
further spelled out in the Transportation Planning and Programming Guide.

Agency staffs are in daily contact on issues, actions proposed by their own agencies, and on
upcoming agendas. Key facilitators for coordination are the TAC subcommittee chairs who carry
out formal and informal coordination. The responsibilities of the TAB Coordinator, who staffs the
Transportation Advisory Board (TAB), are part of this activity. The coordinator advises the TAB
chair on the Board’s agenda and follows through on Board decisions, prepares background
materials, and monitors the transportation planning process. The Metropolitan Council provides
staff support and technical input to TAC committees and other special technical advisory
committees and task forces. Staff also provides necessary assistance to the TAB Coordinator.

Council staff will prepare the 2019 UPWP in cooperation with MnDOT, EHWA, MPCA, and MAC.
It is expected that several structural changes will be made to meet FHWA expectations with
regard to clarity, prioritization, and the relationship to the MPQO’s goals. Other products prepared
by the Metropolitan Council and MnDOT under this activity include state or federally mandated
reports such as Title VI, project approvals and quarterly UPWP progress reports. Staff will attend
the quarterly statewide MPO Directors meetings and the annual Minnesota MPO conference.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: In 2017 agency staff participated in meetings of TAC,
TAB and their subcommittees, as well as work on the other routine products and activities noted
above.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: MnDOT is involved in the planning process as
an ongoing participant. MNDOT staff provides technical input, serves as committee members on
several TAB and TAC committees, and is in frequent contact with Council staff regarding many
issues. MnDOT plays a major role in administering and managing the federal planning funds that
finance a majority of the planning work done by the Council. MNnDOT staff also provides guidance
to ensure that federal planning requirements are met. The MPCA staff participates in the ongoing
interagency coordination activities to administer the Clean Air Act and the FAST Act by
participating in the review of the TPP, TIP and the UPWP; participating in the work of the TAB and
TAC; serves as committee members on TAB and TAC committees; by providing needed technical
assistance; and categorizing projects for air quality conformity purposes.

8


http://www.metrocouncil.org/Council-Meetings/Committees
http://www.metrocouncil.org/Transportation/Publications-And-Resources/Transportation-Planning-and-Programming-Guide-2013.aspx

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES

Committee Agendas, Minutes, Reports Ongoing

Submittal of Functional Classification Changes Ongoing

Audited 2016 (Consolidated Planning Grant) Fund Statements April

Annual Update of Title VI and DBE Goals July

2019 Unified Planning Work Program September

UPWP Progress Reports to MnDOT Quarterly

UPWP Midyear Meeting Q2

TMA Certification Quarterly Reports January, April, July, October

TASK A-2 TIP DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT

PURPOSE: Federal law requires preparation and approval of the four-year Transportation
Improvement Program (TIP), including projects selected through the regional solicitation process.

APPROACH: In 2018 a 2019-2022 TIP will be prepared, beginning in March to allow time for air
guality conformity analysis and stakeholder input prior to adoption in the third quarter. The TIP
also fulfills the FTA requirement for a Program of Projects (POP). The TIP will be recommended
for adoption by the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) to the TAB, adopted by the
Transportation Advisory Board (TAB), and approved by the Metropolitan Council. Any TIP
amendments received during the year are processed in a similar manner. In 2018, an annual
listing of obligated projects will be published showing projects with federal funds obligated in the
previous year. The TIP itself includes a list of projects authorized in the previous fiscal year, in
compliance with federal law.

Staff will work with agencies requesting assistance with exchanging federal funds between
projects. After federal funds are removed from a project, staff will monitor the project to assure
that it is developed per the work scope in the Regional Solicitation application.

In 2018, the TAB is scheduled to select projects from the regional solicitation to be funded with
federal funds in 2022 and 2023, contingent upon available federal funding.

The 2018 air quality planning activities related to this task will focus on the regional process for
conformity determination of the 2019-2022 TIP (see Task B-10 for more information). The latest
EPA regional air quality model will be used.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: The 2019-2022 TIP preparation will build on the 2018-
2021 TIP.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: MnDOT staff works cooperatively with Council
staff and TAB/TAC to develop revenue assumptions. Staff from the Metropolitan Council, MnDOT,
MPCA, TAC and TAB representatives were involved in the 2014/2015 TAB Regional Solicitation
Design Process and the more recent 2016 Regional Solicitation. MNDOT coordinates and
monitors TIP data for all federally funded projects, and MnDOT Trunk Highway projects. MNDOT
has a significant role in the development of the TIP providing at least one full time position
devoted to the coordination and management of data and fiscal analysis of the document. In
addition, MnDOT staff plays an active role in the development and presentation of amendment
requests at the TAC Funding and Programming Committee. MnDOT also administers STIP
amendments, as needed. MPCA will continue to attend committee meetings of TAC and TAB,
assist in TIP development reviews, evaluate projects for federal funding, and participate in project
selection and air quality conformity analysis.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Prepare Draft 2019-2022 TIP March



Adopt TIP Incl. Certification of 3-C Process, Major Projects September
Completed/Obligated in Previous Year, and an Air Quality Conformity

Analysis

Annual Listing of Obligated Projects December
Process TIP amendments As needed
TIP Annual Report October
Federal Funds Exchange As needed

TASK A-3 REGIONAL SOLICITATION

PURPOSE: The Regional Solicitation for federal transportation project funding is part of the
Metropolitan Council’s federally-required continuing, comprehensive, and cooperative
transportation planning process for the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area. The funding program and
related rules and requirements are established by the USDOT and administered locally through
collaboration with the FHWA, FTA, and MnDOT. Projects are selected for funding as part of two
federal programs: Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBGP) and Congestion
Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ).

ACTIVITIES: A Regional Solicitation for federal funds will be released in spring 2018 for 2022-
2023 STBGP and CMAQ funds, with final project selection in late 2018 or early 2019. Projects
selected will be programmed for inclusion in the 2020-2023 TIP, for approval in fall 2018. A
Regional Solicitation Project Evaluation will be prepared to review the performance of completed
projects.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: A Regional Solicitation Evaluation Study was concluded
in 2014, and solicitations were released in late 2014 for STP, CMAQ, and TAP projects for 2017-
2019 and in mid-2015 for TDM projects for 2015-2017 using the revised criteria. A new regional
solicitation was released in 2016 with projects selected in early 2017. A Regional Solicitation
Project Evaluation was prepared to review and revise the measures for the 2018 Solicitation. Staff
created a summary of the final products of previously funded projects and an online mapping tool
showing the funded projects.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
2018 Regional Solicitation Project Selection 2018/2019

Regional Solicitation Project Showcase 2018

Regional Solicitation Project Summaries 2018

Regional Solicitation Project Evaluation 20198

TASK A-4 RESPOND TO REVISIONS IN FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION LAW

PURPOSE: Respond to revised funding levels and policy direction in the FAST Act federal
transportation law concerning funding eligibility and roles and responsibilities of MPOs, which
affect how MnDOT, the Council, and TAC/TAB function in the future.

ACTIVITIES: Council staff will continue to work with MnDOT, TAC/TAB and the Council on
interpreting and implementing any changes resulting from the FAST Act, as well as reviewing and
responding to any new proposed legislation to replace the FAST Act.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: Council staff has worked with MnDOT, federal
agencies, and organizations such as AMPO on an ongoing basis to analyze changes in federal
transportation law and in subsequent draft guidance produced by US DOT.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Revise Policies/Procedures As needed

10



TASK A-5 TRANSPORTATION FINANCE

PURPOSE: To research and implement funding options to implement the Transportation Policy
Plan and to provide financial oversight for transportation planning activities.

ACTIVITIES: Funding constraints placed on the TPP and the TIP are more demanding on the
planning process than ever. Council transportation staff will undertake programming and
budgeting activities. Staff will work with MNDOT and policy makers to identify funding needs and
potential funding scenarios to implement the increased revenue scenario of the 2040 TPP.

As of 2017 the Counties Transportation Improvement Board (CTIB) has been dissolved. Staff will
continue to collaborate with the counties that formally consisted of that group, coordinating with
counties and regional rail authorities for transit planning, visioning, and financing. As of 2017 all
seven counties now administer a sales tax for transportation improvements, and the Council will
incorporate the anticipated revenues and expenditures into the TPP. Some counties are able to
provide more information than others at this time.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: The Council prepares an operating budget and 6-year
transit CIP annually.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: The Council is the lead agency. Council staff
works with the transit operating agencies and suburban transit providers on transit capital
planning. MnDOT works in cooperation with the Council on alternative roadway financing such as
HOT lanes and congestion pricing.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Analysis of Transportation Funding Ongoing
Selection of Projects for Regional Transit Capital Funding December
Unified Operating Budget December
Unified Capital Budget December

Activity A 2018 Budget

ACTIVITY STAFF WEEKS: 314

CONSULTANT: $10,000

TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES: $1,309,703

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

FEDERAL: (CPG) $1,047,762

LOCAL: Met Council $261,941

TOTAL $1,309,703

11



B. COMPREHENSIVE AND SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING
TASK B-1 LAND USE AND GENERALTRANSPORTATION PLANNING

PURPOSE: To ensure implementation of the Council’s long-range 2040 Transportation Policy Plan
and Thrive MSP 2040, both chapters in its overall metropolitan development guide, and to begin
complete the update for the next Transportation Policy Plan.

APPROACH: The Metropolitan Council adopted the 2040 Transportation Policy Plan in January

2015. This plan is the first TPP since the passage of MAP-21 and-is-the-first-planfortheregion-to
incorporate a performameegerformanc based plannlnq framework and evaIuatlon [:_)roces

In 2017 IFthe Councrl has—began—beqan major work tasks to develop new content and proposed

changes eutreach-and-engagementactivities-for the 2018 update to the 2040 TPP;. as-wellas
developing-contentforthe-update-Significant outreach and engagement activities have taken place

through the TAB/TAC committees and also directly with regional transportation partners and
stakeholders. The major TPP updates changes will include: furtherdetailidentifying regional
transportation performance measures to support performance-based planning;; updating fiscal
projections and adjusting-thelikely-forecasting performance outcomes under the various-scenarios
ynderdevelopmenttwo funding scenarios—previding-more-detail-to-the financiaHnputs-used-in-the
Plan;; incorporating the results of completed planning studies including the Principal Arterial
Intersection Conversion Study, Regional Truck Highway Corridor Study and the Regional Bicycle
Barriers Study among others; and providinge mere-detail-updated status on the various major
highway and transit projects to be completed during the timeframe of the Plan. As part of its on-
going engagement efforts, Fthe Council will coordinate and document discussions with the
Shakopee Mdewakanton Sioux community aspartofthe TRP Updateprocess:and will analyze the
Plan’s impact on disadvantaged communities, document procedures for environmental mitigation,
and will update the natural and historic resources inventory.

Transportation planning staff implementation activities in 2018 will include:

e Participate in interdepartmental implementation teams for Thrive MSP 2040 _including the equity
implementation, economic competitiveness and climate and sustainability teams. —Conduct additional
work in equity analysis, such as examining safety outcomes and studying transportation expenditures,
|nclud|ng preservation and maintenance spend|ng for potentlal disparities by race and income. More

e Transportation planning staff works with other Council staff to ensure transportation policy is
considered in ongoing planning and grant activities of other departments, such as parks, natural
resources, and the Livable Communities grant program.

o Staff will continue to work with other Council staff in the preparation of guidance such as Planlt that
directs the Comprehensive Plan updates to be submitted by local governments by December 2018.
Optional Preliminary Plan Reviews by staff will be offered as a resource to local governments in early
2018 _and staff will review final local comprehensive plan as submitted throughout 2018.

e Staff will continue to review Comprehensive Plan Amendments and environmental documents when
submitted by cities, counties, and agencies.

o Staff will continue to work with University of Minnesota researchers on Center for Transportation
Studies (CTS) and Humphrey School of Public Affairs activities in transportation research.

e Transportation planning staff will continue to work with other Council staff on transit-oriented
development policy and guidance activities.

e Council staff participates in a regional TOD working group made up of multiple jurisdictions, agencies,
and nonprofits, and assisted by other staff at the Council.

e The Council will Rrelease a draft 2018 update to the 2040 TPP in late 2017 for review by regional
transportation partners including the TAB and TAC committees throughout early 2018. Revisions will

12



be made based upon comments provided by the planning partners and the draft will be released for
public comment in early-spring 2018. Final revisions based upon the comments provided will be
incorporated, a public comment report produced, and adeptthe final plan_adopted by autumn 2018.

In addition to the public comment period, Fthe Council will provide opportunities to the public for
participation in the planning process through the Council website, open houses, public hearings,
resident advisory committees, and other means listed in the citizen participation process in the

Public Participation Plan<pending-adeption-of-an-updated-plan-in-mid-2017).

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: The regional development guide, known as Thrive
MSP 2040, was adopted in May 2014; the 2040 Transportation Policy Plan was updated in
January 2015. The long-range transportation plan must be updated every four years to meet
federal requirements; the development guide is typically updated every 10 years. A March 13,
2015 letter to MNDOT Commissioner Charlie Zelle from FHWA set the first quarter of 2019 as the
latest date for adopting the next TPP. It is expected that the next plan update will occur in late
summer or fall of 2018. Transportation staff reviews updates and amendments to local
comprehensive plans, which must be prepared by local units of government under state law, to
ensure consistency of local comprehensive plans with regional land use and transportation plans.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: MnDOT serves as the lead agency for Intelligent
Transportation Systems (ITS) activities in Minnesota, including the Regional ITS architecture;
Council staff continues to participate in MNDOT ITS activities. Council staff will contribute efforts
to the University of Minnesota Transitways Impacts Research Program and participate in research
on Traffic, Parking, and Travel Behavior Impacts; Land Use Impacts; and Economic and Business
Impacts.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Reviews of Local Comprehensive Plans, EAs, and EIS’s (including As Needed
amendments)

Participate in Various Team Activities (Including Local Planning Handbook,  As Appropriate
Livable Communities, Referrals, and Sector Reps)

Review of Livable Communities Grants Semi-annually
Participate in ITS and CTS Activities Ongoing

TOD Policy and Guidance Activities Ongoing

TPP Engagement Activities 2018

Gold Line Station Area Planning 2019

Blue Line Extension Station Are Planning 2019

2040 Transportation Policy Plan Update 2018

TASK B-2 PERFORMANCE-BASED PLANNING AND MEASUREMENT

PURPOSE: Respond to federal requirements that MPOs use a performance-based approach and
develop performance measures for their long range transportation plan. To develop, maintain, and
disseminate information on the performance of the Twin Cities transportation system to inform
policy decisions and funding allocations and to comply with state law. To evaluate the application
of transit service planning guidelines and performance standards, achieving a regional consensus
on equity and service priorities in the allocation of transit resources, and instituting service
changes.

ACTIVITIES: Council staff will work with MnDOT, county, and city staff to identify and incorporate
recommended performance measures in the rext-2018 TPP_update._Throughout 2017 staff met
with modal work groups, the TAB/TAC commrttees and Council members to finalize a Irst of
reqronal performance measures.

WI|| include analvzrnq performance outcomes for the identified measures under exrstrnq current

revenue and the increased revenue scenarios in the TPP, setting required targets for federally

13



required performance measures and engaging partners to identify potential targets for the locally
identified performance measures.

In 2008 state legislation was updated to require the Council to conduct a comprehensive
evaluation of the transportation system (the Transportation System Performance Evaluation or
TSPE) every four years in the year prior to the revision of the Transportation Policy Plan._This
evaluation was produced in 2017 and results are being used in the 2018 TPP update. #Teh
legislation also requires that on the intervening two years, the Council conduct an evaluation of
the transit system. Collection of data for this-these evaluations allows the Council to maintain a

wide variety of historical and current data on an on-going basis, which is used for ethermany
planning studies and activities as well as presented for informational purposes through a wide
variety of venues. The system-developedTSPE measures and benchmarks that-assess the
operational performance of the transportatlon svstem alonq W|th usmq access, sustamablllty and
I|vab|I|ty Mmeasures e A ;

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: The Metropolitan Council adopted the 2040
Transportation Policy Plan in January 2015. This is the first TPP since the passage of MAP-21
and is the first performance-based plan for the region. The performance measures in the adopted
TPP are placeholders. The performance management work described here is looking to build off
efprevious efforts and solidify and adopt performance measures for the next TPP.

In 1997, 2001, 2005, 2013, and 20167 the Council conducted transportation system performance
additsevaluations, and in 1999, 2003, 2007, 2009, and 2016 transit evaluations.

This element also represents a continuation of transit planning and implementation formerly
conducted by the Metropolitan Council, Regional Transit Board, and Metropolitan Transit
Commission and other providers. This work also includes participation in evaluation efforts
associated with the operations divisions of the Metropolitan Council, which may not be directly
funded through the CPG.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: MnDOT and the Metropolitan Council will work
closely to develop performance measures and targets for the state-and-regionathighwayregional
transportation system that fellew-meet federal guidelines-requirements, and-align with Thrive MSP
2040 MrSHIPand Minnesota Go, the statewide multimodal transportation plan-and are
incorporated into the TPP_update and TIP evaluation.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Refine Performance Measures for Future TPP Updates Ongoing

TASK B-3 CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROCESS

PURPOSE: Federal law requires Transportation Management Areas (MPOs serving metropolitan
areas with populations greater than 200,000) to develop a comprehensive Congestion
Management Process (CMP). The CMP is a cooperative, multi-faceted process that includes
establishing objectives; measuring and closely monitoring system performance; identifying causes
of both recurring and non-recurring congestion; and implementing strategies to reduce congestion
on the transportation system. This results in the establishment of updated multi-modal
performance measures and strategies which will be included in the Transportation Policy Plan
(TPP) and used as a component in the project selection process.




ACTIVITIES: Pursuant to 23 CFR 450.322, the Metropolitan Council established a CMP_Advisory
Committee in 2017, which is composed of partners and stakeholders representing transportation
agencies and operators throughout the metro area. This Committee coordinates efforts and
performs a number of activities in order to develop strategies that mitigate congestion on the
transportation system. For 2018, the Committee will concentrate on the following issues:

e Determine the extent of the CMP network;

e Develop a methodology for and then analyze congestion levels on the non-freeway
principal and minor arterials systems;

e Define strategies to reduce congestion on these systems;
Propose strategies to incorporate prioritized CMP corridors into the project selection
process;

o Assess the effectiveness of previously implemented strategies;-and

e Discuss a comprehensive and coordinated program for collecting data used to assess
system performance and determining both the extent and causes of congestion along the
transportationprincipal and minor arterial systems. It is expected that StreetLight Insight, a
software service package with the ability to monitor speed, travel time, and delay on
roadways throughout the metropolitan area, will be heavily utilized in this endeavor.

e TheUse the resulting data and resulting-analyses willbe-used-to define congestion
mitigation objectives and help establish performance measures and targets to assess and
monitor system congestion.

Additionally—tThe Council has set aside $200,000 in federal CPG monies that will be used in 2018
for a consultant-led study, specifically addressing congestion issues on the minor arterial system.
The specific scope and objectives of the project will be determined in cooperation with the CMP
Advisory Committee in early 2018.

In 2018, the Council will also utilize the results of the Principal Arterial Intersection Conversion
Study, along with arterial speed data as scoring measures in the Regional Solicitation. This is the
first step in integrating arterial CMP activities into the project selection process.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: The Metropolitan Council had its guadrennial

Transportation Management Area Certification Review in November 2016 which identified several
improvements that are necessary in order for the Council to be in full compliance with 23 CFR
450.322. As aresult, the Council and FHWA hosted a peer exchange in May 2017. This
exchange provided staff with valuable information from CMP activities performed by peer MPOs,
and in part forms the basis for some of the activities programmed within the 2018 UPWP. In 2017
the Council finalized the formation of the CMP Advisory Committee, which will work collaboratively
with the Council to ensure the 8-step Federal CMP process is fully addressed and that CMP
objectives and strategies are integrated into project funding and implementation.

The Council’s currently identified CMP _network consists of principal arterials within the region. In
2018 the Council, in coordination with the CMP_Advisory Committee, will expand the network by
analyzing and assessing both non-freeway principal arterials and minor arterials (the A-minor
system). In addition, as identified in the Certification Review, the Council will provide clarity on the
relationship between the established performance measures and how they specifically factor into
the congestion management process .

The Council has implemented a number of regional congestion mitigation strategies that ensure
transportation investments are focused on reducing congestion and managing travel demand.

15



One such effort, performed in conjunction with the MnDOT Metro District, was the establishment
of the MnPASS program. This program is directly aimed at decreasing the number of single-
occupant vehicles and implementing a congestion pricing procedure along key corridors within the
metro area.

As a result of increased on-going funding allocated threughby the Regional Solicitation, the
Council, and MnDOT, the Travel Behavior Inventory (TBI) will beginning in 2018 be conducted on
a rolling every-other year basis and has dramatically improveding the breadth and frequency of
data collected and ultimately used to make decisions. The program -provides the data necessary
to monitor and assess the performance of the transportation system, including thesedata related
to congestion. The TBI provides the Council and its stakeholders with a wealth of information
including commuting patterns, mode choice, speed, and traffic patterns throughout the metro
area. These data, in conjunction with the newly-acquired StreetLight data, serve as the base of
the Council’s data collection program.

Over the past number of years, the Council has performed a number of studies aimed at
assessing and identifying high-priority areas for improvement along the transportation system and
integrating these results into the project selection process. Such activities include the Principal
Arterial Intersection Conversion Study, which identifiesd priority intersections for conversion to
interchanges and proiectselection-and helps prioritize the expenditure of federal funds allocated
through the Regional Solicitation Process and MnDOT’s Transportation and Economic
Development (TED) Program. In addition, the Congestion Management Safety Plan IV was
completed by MnDOT in 2017 and -the analysis expanded beyond the freeway system to include
the arterial system. The program aims to identify low-cost projects that reduce congestion and
improve safety and travel time reliability on MnDOT’s system.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: Since the development of the Congestion
Management System in 1997, the Council has coordinated closely with MNDOT on mapping
congestion through the data provided by the Regional Traffic Management Center. In addition,
many of the previously identified programs were established cooperatively with the MNnDOT Metro
District and designed to reflect the processes identified in 23 CFR 450.322. Finally, through the
CMP_Advisory Committee, the Council has established a coordinated and transparent process for
systematically addressing congestion in a manner that allows for all regional stakeholders and
transportation officials to be informed and have a forum for input.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
16



Gather key data to monitor congestion and system performance through the

Regional Traffic Management Center, Travel Behavior Inventory, and threugh _ Ongoing
the use of StreetLight Insight. These data and the resulting analysies will be

shared with the CMP advisory committee and other key operational and

transportation stakeholders

Revised Congestion Management Plan chapter in 2040 TPP 2018
i F - i : ; hoat ===

Consultant-led CMP Study on Arterial Network TBD

Identification of minor Aarterial Mmobility lissue Alocationsreas B

TASK B-4 CORRIDOR STUDIES

PURPOSE: To participate in major corridor studies to ensure implementation of the regional
transportation and development policies of the Council.

ACTIVITIES: Metropolitan Council, regional rail authorities, and MnDOT staffs participate on
corridor study management teams, advisory committees, and task forces for many trunk highway
and transit corridors. The scale of each corridor study will be consistent with the investment
priorities identified in the TPP and MnDOT’s Highway Investment Plan (MnSHIP). For instance,
some studies may focus primarily on access management and operational activities, while other
corridors will be considered for additional investments, such as managed lanes and strategic
capacity enhancements. Metropolitan Council is the lead agency for design, engineering, and
submitting funding applications for light rail transit (LRT) in the Southwest and Bottineau
Transitways. Council planning staff also provides input on transit corridor studies and station-area
land use planning lead by other agencies, primarily the county regional railroad authorities. For
each corridor study, the lead agency assumes responsibility for public participation, which
typically includes newsletters, meetings, open houses, special outreach to affected businesses
and communities and websites. Studies will consider environmental justice impacts at a corridor
level. Staff will also provide data and modeling information to municipalities and agencies upon
request to support ongoing planning and environmental studies. This may include travel forecasts
or review of forecasts prepared by others. Specific corridor studies known in June 2017 are
included in the product list. The Council is the local joint lead agency on the Gateway (Gold Line)
Draft Environmental Impact Statement with the Washington County Regional Railroad Authority.
The DEIS is evaluating bus rapid transit alternatives that would run on a dedicated guideway
between downtown St Paul and Woodbury. The DEIS was completed in early-20172019.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: This is part of the ongoing effort to implement regional
plans at the corridor level. Most corridor studies take several years and may progress from
feasibility studies to alternative analysis, environmental documentation/preliminary engineering,
and land use planning. Council planning staff is typically involved through many early stages and
may continue until final design and construction of a project, while staff from other agencies such
as MnDOT may transition from planning to other departments after preliminary engineering
begins. Council transportation planning staff involvement in transit corridors like Green Line
Extension and Blue Line Extension is minimal once a project office is opened to begin
implementation, although land use coordination may continue.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: MnDOT is usually the lead agency for highway
corridors. MNnDOT has developed a planning prioritization process to help in the identification and
prioritization of Metro District studies and projects. MnDOT is also leading an analysis of MNPASS
options along 1-494 and TH 62 and combined highway and transit option on TH 169, which the
Council follows and participates in. For many transit corridors, the regional railroad authorities are
the lead agencies for feasibility, AA or environmental studies, although responsibility is usually

17



transferred to the implementing agency when project development or design commences. The
cities of Minneapolis and Saint Paul are exploring modern streetcar systems and have completed
system studies leading to specific corridors. The City of Minneapolis is moving forward on a
specific recommendation of streetcar in the Nicollet-Central corridor and Council staff is assisting
on early environmental work. Council staff participates in station land use planning activities lead
by counties or cities along transit corridors (e.g., a Southwest LRT Community Works project has
been formed by Hennepin County; and Council leadership and staff are participating in a Steering
Committee and Technical Implementation Committee, in addition to leading a Southwest LRT
Management Committee). MnDOT also works on transit studies, especially where the corridor
utilizes a MnDOT highway, such as Cedar Avenue/Highway 77 or I-35W BRT; or commuter rail
projects, where MnDOT has responsibilities under state law. MPCA staff will provide input
regarding the applicability of FAST Act and CAA air quality requirements, and state noise rules
during environmental document development by reviewing and commenting on proposed highway
and transit construction and/or reconstruction projects. The majority of corridor study costs are
typically incurred by the lead agency for both staff and consultant work and are reflected in their
own agency budget.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Rush Line Pre-Project Development Study and Environmental Work 2019

Gateway Corridor DEIS 2019

Riverview Pre-Project Development Study 2018

Nicollet/Central Avenue Corridor Post-EA Ongoing

Red Rock Monitoring Ongoing

1-94 Between the Downtowns Project 2019

TH 169 Mobility Study 2018

Highspeed Rail between the Twin Cities and Milwaukee EIS Ongoing

Highway 252 Conversion Study 2018

TASK B-5 HIGHWAY SYSTEM PLANNING

PURPOSE: To work with agency partners to plan a regional highway system that is consistent
with the goals and objectives in the 2040 Transportation Policy Plan.

ACTIVITES: Council staff will work with agency partners on a number of highway issues including
the following:

e Staff will continue to co-lead a project with MNnDOT to examine non-freeway principal arterials. It will
assess the feasibility and priorities for intersection conversions into interchanges and other grade-
separation solutions.

e  Staff will continue to work with MnDOT on alternative roadway financing issues including the [-35E
Value Pricing grant project and other MNPASS and dynamic shoulder pricing projects. Consistent
policy and design decisions are needed as the region implements more managed lane MNPASS
projects.

o Staff will begin work on identifying and prioritizing strategic capacity expansion projects for the
Increased Revenue Scenario of the next TPP.

o Staff will begin discussion on the feasibility and potential need for a regional approach to managing

the non-freeway arterial roadway system.

Staff will continue to examine the feasibility of “superstreets” for the region.

Staff will continue to evaluate requests for additional interchanges as submitted.

Staff will review and approve changes to controlled access highways, as required by state law.

Staff will continue to work closely with MnDOT to provide metro area perspective on a number of

statewide studies and plans, such as updates of the Capital Highway Investment Plan (CHIP) and

Asset Management Plan.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: Metropolitan Council staff have worked closely with

MnDOT and other agency partners to further plan the regional highway system. Some of these
18



efforts include updates of the Congestion Management and Safety Plan and MnPASS studies.
The A-Minor Arterial System Evaluation also assessed the past performance of this functional
class of roadway and made recommendations to improve it in the future.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: Metropolitan Council staff will devote a significant
amount of time to supporting MNnDOT’s Rethinking 1-94 Project. This is a large project requiring
input and feedback from all partner agencies. Staff will be provided to assist in the technical
contract as well as in substantial engagement activities throughout the duration of the study.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Various Managed Lane Implementation Studies Ongoing

Review Highway Interchange Additions As Needed

Review Controlled Access Highway Revisions As Needed

TH 36 Corridor Study 2018

Strategic Capacity Expansion Study 2019

Spending on the Regional Highway System 2018

TASK B-6 FREIGHT PLANNING

PURPOSE: To continue to develop an integrated regional freight planning program for the Twin
Cities Metropolitan Area, to be implemented by MnDOT, Metropolitan Council, and our partners in
the public and private sectors.

ACTIVITIES: The Twin Cities Metropolitan Area is the hub of many freight transportation supply
chains in the Upper Midwest not only for goods produced and consumed here, but for freight
moving through the region to other areas. Freight issues include highway and rail traffic
congestion, conflicts between freight rail and passenger rail, aging infrastructure, local land use
conflicts and community acceptance. Freight planners will continue to work on teams
implementing the economic competitiveness aspects of Thrive MSP 2040.

The Metropolitan Council will continue ongoing work activities in 2018 to:

¢ Identify and support integration of freight considerations into land use and transportation
planning activities of the Council, including implementation of Thrive MSP 2040, updates
to the regional solicitation, and technical assistance to local government on freight
planning as they prepare their 2018 comprehensive plan updates.

e Participate in freight transportation planning at MNnDOT including efforts underway to
implement new freight planning provisions of federal law.

e Participate in Minnesota Freight Advisory Committee (MFAC) and its Executive Committee
and draw on the expertise and contributions of members of the MFAC as needed for metro
area transportation planning.

e Coordinate freight data collection and analysis with partner organizations.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: In 2011-2013 the Metropolitan Council worked with
MnDOT (Metro District and the Office of Freight and Commercial Vehicle Operations) to prepare a
Twin Cities Metropolitan Area Regional Freight Study to identify freight-related trends and issues
and to develop solutions for the high priority freight issues. The summary report of this study was
used in preparing the 2040 Transportation Policy Plan, and other study reports, posted on the
MnDOT website, will continue to be used as needed to coordinate freight planning in the region.
In 2014-15 staff participated in MnDOT’s update of the state freight plan. In 2016 the Council
completed the Regional Truck Freight Corridor Study to identify which highways are most
important for trucks.

19



RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: MnDOT includes an Office of Freight and
Commercial Vehicle operations that conducts freight planning statewide and oversees the
Minnesota Freight Advisory Committee (MFAC). This office informs and works closely with
Metropolitan Council staff on metro area freight planning activities.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Metro Freight Initiative Implementation Ongoing

TASK B-7 TRANSIT PLANNING

PURPOSE: To conduct the mid- and long-range regional transit studies, policy, planning, and
implementation activities. To develop short-range implementation plans to carry out regional
transit policy and ensure, through a comprehensive and coordinated review process, that
proposed development plans or implementation programs are consistent with the Council’s 2040
Transportation Policy Plan and other transportation policy documents. To participate in regional
transportation projects to ensure that transit alternatives are adequately addressed and
considered.

ACTIVITIES: Activities in this category include short-, mid- and long-range transit planning and
implementation conducted by the Council’'s MTS planning staff which is not related to a specific
corridor.

e Council staff coordinate with Metro Transit staff, other transit operators, and local
communities on specific studies of transit policy issues and assist with the implementation of
completed studies, when applicable.

e Council staff will continue to participate with MNDOT and transit operators in the multi-agency
Team Transit, which has been identifying and expediting bus-related road improvements to
improve the multimodal capability of the region’s highways for almost 30 years.

e Council staff will provide technical assistance to communities on development and
implementation of transit and travel demand management (TDM) elements of comprehensive
plan amendments, pedestrian and bicycle friendly land use coordination, transit-oriented
development and other transit-related activities as appropriate. Council will also coordinate
with TDM implementers on the relationship between their activities and regional long-range
planning efforts.

e The Council is leading policy efforts that will inform future updates of the Transit Investment
Direction in the 2040 TPP. One effort is to further define possible criteria for setting regional
transitway priorities. This will build off the performance-based planning framework in the 2040
TPP and provide a direct linkage between performance measures and potential system
investments. Another effort is studying the possible policy implications of the introduction of
modern streetcar into the transitway system. This effort is looking at peer regions and key
guestions surrounding the funding and expansion of streetcar system, which is being
explored and has been recommended by some local partners for consideration in the 2040
TPP update. Additional efforts will analyze regional transit demand for non-regular route
transit services, which may services such as dial-a-ride, employer shuttles, and van

programs.

e The Council has developed an updated model for park-and-ride demand estimation and will
begin implementing the results of the model in 2018. The model will guide regional and local
implementation of transit projects when they are being funded or designed and assist
regional planning for park-and-ride demand.

20



e The Council works with all regional transit providers to update the Regional Service
Improvement Plan, a document that informs potential investments in the expansion of the
transit system. This is updated every two years with a call for project ideas and the
involvement of all public transit providers.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: This activity implements several activities of past
years, such as the 2040 Transportation Policy Plan, the Highway Transitway Corridor Study, the
Arterial Transitway Corridor Study, and other ongoing policy or system analyses. LRT, BRT, and
commuter rail feasibility studies are related to this activity but fall under Task B-3, “Corridor
Studies.”

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: The Council works closely with the county
regional railroad authorizes on corridor-specific work to ensure consistency with system planning
and development. Any efforts to address policies related to regional transit investments require
the Council to coordinate with cities, counties, and transit providers that may be leading specific
efforts or be affected by policies through land use planning or implementation activities. MnDOT,
Met Council, Metro Transit, other transit providers, and local governments work jointly on the
Team Transit effort that provides planning and coordination on bus shoulder lanes, park-and-ride
lots, and HOV by-pass lanes on the Trunk Highway system, as well as the mitigation of highway
construction impacts. With the dissolution of the Counties Transit Improvement Board it is
expected that counties will provide their own sales tax revenues to some transit projects, with
which the Council will coordinate. The Transportation Advisory Board to the Metropolitan Council
continues to invest in the federally-funded regional travel demand management program, which
includes implementation efforts for the promotion of transportation alternatives such as transit,
bicycling, and walking.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Project Review and Referral Memoranda Related to Transit As Needed
Development of Bus Shoulder Lanes and Other Transit-Supportive Measures in  Ongoing

Conjunction with the Regional Highway System

Further Defining the Process for Setting Transitway Priorities 2018
Update of Regional Service Improvement Plan Ongoing
Modern Streetcar Policy Study Ongoing
Last Mile Employer Transit Connections Study 2018
Transit Service Allocation Study 2019

TASK B-8 BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN PLANNING

PURPOSE: To participate in bicycle and pedestrian planning in the region and provide technical
assistance and coordination to other government units.

ACTIVITIES: The Council’'s 2040 TPP supports and encourages bicycle and pedestrian planning
and staff provides regional coordination and technical assistance. The 2040 TPP established a
Regional Bicycle Transportation Network (RBTN), with prioritized regional bicycle corridors and
general alignments. The defined RBTN corridors are intended to serve as the backbone arterial
system for biking in the region and to encourage planning and implementation of this regional
network by cities, counties, parks agencies, and the state. Refinement and implementation of the
RBTN is ongomg and corrldor reflnements and specmc allgnment deS|gnat|ons WI|| continue in

Metropolitan Council staff is developing a new tool for updating the regional bicycle system

inventory. Metropolitan Council staff will be collaborating with local agencies to update and

maintain the regional bicycle system inventory map. The new mapping tool will allow local
21



agencies to upload their local bike plan networks to a regional map database. This regional
database will be managed by Council staff and then made exportable to agencies and the general
public via the Metro GIS dafafinder.

In 2017 staff will continue purchasing automated bicycle and pedestrian count equipment for use
in collecting count data for regional planning. MNnDOT has been leading the development of
automated bicycle and pedestrian count data collection in the state, and Council staff participate
in MnDOT'’s Bicycle and Pedestrian Count Task Force. A regional count program pilot will enable
staff to collect data for locations appropriate for regional planning uses, such as (but not limited to)
identifying usage trends, determining exposure for safety analyses, and model calibration.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: The Regional Bicycle System Study was completed in
2014 to develop a more complete understanding of how the region’s on-street bikeways and off-
street trails interface and how the on and off-road systems work together to serve regional
transportation trips by bicycle. The study culminated with a proposed RBTN, which was later
incorporated into the 2040 TPP. In 2017 a Regional Bicycle Barriers Study was complete to
analyze major gaps in the regional bicycle network.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: MnDOT’s bicycle and pedestrian staff works
cooperatively with the Council by providing data and technical information, participating on the
TAC Funding and Programming Subcommittee, and providing technical assistance and technical
training for local governments on ADA and other elements of bike and pedestrian design, planning
and operations. Minneapolis and Hennepin and Ramsey counties have formal bicycle and
pedestrian advisory committees which include Council and MnDOT staff. Metropolitan Council
staff continues to participate on MnDOT’s State Non-Motorized Transportation Advisory
Committee. The Council is represented on Minneapolis’ Pedestrian Advisory Committee.

MnDOT and the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) began a Statewide Pedestrian Plan in
2014. Council staff continues to work with MnDOT and MDH staff to provide input from the
region’s perspective to the statewide plan and serves on the Project Advisory Committee.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Compile Regional Bicycle System Inventory/Public via Metro  Ongoing

GIS

Regional Bicycle Transportation Network implementation Ongoing

Bicycle and Pedestrian Count Program Ongoing

Pedestrian Safety and Crash Analysis 2018

TASK B-9 ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE AND EQUITY

PURPOSE: An important consideration for the 2040 Transportation Policy Plan is its impact on all
populations in the region, particularly those who have been historically underrepresented in
regional planning efforts, including communities of color, low-income residents, people with
disabilities, and people with limited English proficiency. This UPWP adheres to federal
requirements for environmental justice and further responds to additional aspirations for equity set
forth in Thrive MSP 2040. Equity connects all residents to opportunity and creates viable
transportation options for people of all races, ethnicities, incomes, and abilities so that all
communities share the opportunities and challenges of growth and change.

During 2018 cooperative activities will continue with the counties and other social service
providers on transportation assistance to clients. Although the JARC program was not included in
the FAST Act, efforts will continue to disburse JARC funds granted to the region in previous
years.

22



ACTIVITIES: Council staff participates in the Equity Implementation Team and the departmental
Equity Change Team within the Metropolitan Council and will begin work in 2017 on a Racial
Equity Work Program. The Metropolitan Council has also hired a full time staff member in the
Communications department who focuses on transportation issues in order to effectively engage
the public, including traditionally underrepresented communities, in transportation planning efforts.
Title VI activities are referenced under Task A-1 and transportation services for people with
disabilities can be found under Task D-2. This section is intended to highlight work that goes
beyond minimum federal requirements for environmental justice.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: The Council has operated in accordance with executive
order 12898 since the order was issued. In 2015 the TAB and Council members participated in a
workshop to provide a common understanding of equity and its application to regional
transportation policy and making policy-driven investments. Council staff has participated in the
Council’s Equity Implementation Team and the Metropolitan Transportation Services Equity
Change Team since 2015.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: The Council is a recognized leader in the area of
outreach and engagement after the construction and launch of the Green Line transitway. Staff is
approached by other agencies to learn best practices and to build capacity at all levels. As part of
the 1-94 corridor study between the downtowns, Metropolitan Council staff will work with MnDOT

project leaders to enhance the engagement activities for users of and residents near the corridor.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Equity Analysis Study 2018
Access to Jobs Implementation Ongoing

TASK B-10 AIR QUALITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE PLANNING

PURPOSE: To implement long-term air quality planning required by federal law including the
integration of congestion management, transportation, land use, and air quality planning with the
requirements of the Clean Air Act (CAA).

ACTIVITIES: During 2018, the Council, MNDOT and the MPCA will continue the regional and
state air quality planning and coordination activities with through the interagency air quality and
transportation committees and work groups formed to address the CAA conformity requirements.

e Council staff will organize and work with the Minnesota Interagency Air Quality and
Transportation Committee (MNIAQTPC) to consult on air quality issues and State
Implementation Plan (SIP) updates as necessary.

e Air conformity analysis will be carried out for the 2019-2022 TIP.

The roles and responsibilities of the interagency committee and work groups are defined in
the interagency consultation procedures developed collaboratively.

e MPCA and the Council will continue to participate in the activities of Clean Air Minnesota
(CAM), a public-private partnership that works to achieve measurable, voluntary emissions
reductions.

e The MNIAQTPC will continue to implement the EPA approved Limited Maintenance Plan
for carbon monoxide. If the area were to enter nonattainment with either the current or
future National Ambient Air Quality Standards, the MNIAQTPC will assist in developing
possible control strategies to reduce ambient concentrations of the pollutant of concern.

e The Council will work with the MNIAQTPC to transition the planning process under
expected air quality attainment status in 2019.

23



e The Council will continue to collaborate on inter-agency efforts to address climate change.
The Council will provide technical assistance to local governments in quantifying and
reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

e The Council working with MPCA will develop effective strategies to address the
greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals of the 2007 Next Generation Energy Act and
integrate them into the transportation planning process.

e The Council will continue to work on internal climate change and sustainability initiatives.

e The Council will create a CMAQ plan to evaluate the effectiveness of regional activities,
pending the release of the requirements for the CMAQ plan from the USDOT.

A regional component of a proactive strategy to avoid a nonattainment designation by reducing
the formation of ozone and fine particulate matter needs to be prepared and coordinated with the
regional planning and implementation processes. The strategy must be prepared in partnership
with the MPCA, MnDOT, Council and other stakeholders. Modeling work underway by the MPCA
on the regional ozone and fine particulate matter issue will provide direction on appropriate and
the most effective control measures to reduce precursor emissions from transportation sources. If
the area is designated nonattainment, the Council and MnDOT will assist the MPCA in developing
appropriate control measures for inclusion in the SIP. The increases in air toxics in the region as
studied by the MPCA also remain a concern. The Federal Highway Administration and EPA have
developed guidance for addressing mobile sources air toxics in environmental review process for
transportation projects.

In 2018, the MPCA and Environmental Initiative will continue to facilitate a conversation among
leaders in the business, government and nonprofit sectors to seek new opportunities for voluntary
emissions reduction, lay the groundwork for future collaboration to improve air quality in
Minnesota, and prepare for potential nonattainment designations. In 2013 a work group named
“Minnesota Clean Air Dialogue” (CAD) was formed and tasked with identifying the most efficient
and effective ways to meet or exceed potential new federal standards through a process of
collective problem solving and consensus decision-making. The Work group members included
among others, the MPCA, MnDOT, Council, and assisted by additional technical experts,
developed and came to consensus on a set of complementary initiatives to voluntarily reduce
emissions associated with ozone and fine particle pollution. The MPCA and its contractor
Environmental Initiative are now working to coordinate the next phase of this effort, called Clean
Air Minnesota, which aims to bring together partners across multiple sectors to proactively
develop, fund, and implement some of the projects that were recommended by CAD. Over the
past several years, the Environmental Quality Board has been leading a Work Group with Partner
Agencies including: the MPCA, the Council, MNnDOT, Commerce, DNR, Agriculture and Health
called “The Climate Solutions and Economic Opportunity.” The work group evaluated policy
options from across Minnesota’s major economic sectors for their potential to grow our economy
and to reduce greenhouse gases that contribute to climate change. The draft of this report
included recommendations in the proposed legislation. The Council also has an on-going Climate
Change and Environmental Sustainability work group that focuses on internal activities at the
Council to reduce the carbon footprint of the agency as a whole. Many of the initiatives
coordinated by this group also impact and benefit the cities and other agencies of the region
through activities such as urban forestry, solar gardens, and energy management.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: The Council annually prepares a conformity
determination of the TIP, and as needed for regionally significant amendments and prepared the
most recent conformity determination of the 2040 Transportation Policy Plan and 2018-20216 TIP
in 2016. The Council signed the Transportation Conformity SIP, which lays out interagency roles
and responsibilities in conformity determination in 2014- this was approved by USEPA in 2015

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: The MPCA, Council, and MnDOT will play key
roles in the development of a regional response strategy to reduce increases in the formation of

24



greenhouse gases, ozone and PM 2.5. The Council staff will provide assistance in travel demand
and air emissions modeling. Council planning staff also works with other council divisions on this
effort, such as Metro Transit staff to increase transit and carpool usage, and Environmental
Services staff, who monitor air pollution from waste water treatment plants.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
SIP Revision for Minnesota As needed
Implement SIP Limited Maintenance Plan Ongoing
PM2.5/0zone Emissions Reduction Strategies Effort Ongoing
Environmental Initiatives Clean Air Minnesota Work Group Ongoing
Conformity Analysis of 2019-2022 TIP April
Conformity Analysis of regionally significant TIP and TPP As needed
amendments

Activity B 2018 Budget

ACTIVITY STAFF WEEKS: 612

CONSULTANT: $420,000

TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES: $2,325,937

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

FEDERAL: (CPG) $2,280,938

LOCAL: Met Council $570,234

TOTAL: $2,851,172

C. RESEARCH AND TRAVEL FORECASTING
TASK C-1 TRAVEL FORECASTING AND TECHNICAL SUPPORT

PURPOSE: To support Council staff in other divisions who provide data and technical products to
transportation planning division.

ACTIVITIES: Metropolitan Council transportation planning staff relies on the support of staff in
other divisions of the Council, including GIS, Research, and Community Development. Research
staff provides land use and socio-economic data and forecasts for use in the regional travel model
and other analyses. GIS division maintains the regional geographic database.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: This is an ongoing effort to provide data and technical
products to support a variety of transportation activities.

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER AGENCY WORK: The Council’s research division works with
the Census Bureau and State Demographer. The Council’'s GIS division works with the Metro
GIS, regional geographic information systems initiative serving the seven-county Minneapolis-St.
Paul metropolitan area, to provide a regional forum to promote and facilitate widespread sharing
of geospatial data. The Council and MnDOT share GIS, data, and modeling information when
possible.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
GIS Database Ongoing
Demographic Forecasts Ongoing

Land use/Transportation Model December

25



TASK C-2 URBAN TRAVEL RESEARCH AND FORECASTING

PURPOSE: To maintain and apply the travel forecast models to support planning for the orderly
development and operation of transportation facilities. To maintain socio-economic, travel and
traffic data, and to monitor, revise and update travel forecasts to 2040 and beyond. To provide the
projections of traffic demand, greenhouse gas and air pollutant emissions and allied data needed
to evaluate regional transportation investment alternatives. To continue a program of travel and
employment data research such as the Travel Behavior Inventory. This work coordinates travel
behavior data with population and economic data and forms the factual basis for forecasting
models.

ACTIVITIES: The Metropolitan Council and MnDOT will continue joint efforts in developing and
implementing data collection programs to support transportation behavior analysis and forecast
model development. In 2010-2015, the decennial Travel Behavior Inventory (TBI) was conducted
and disseminated. In 2015, the Council performed the TBI program evaluation, looking at the uses
of new technology, new survey methods, and the practice of the composition and timing of travel
surveys. In 2017, the Council began implementing a new TBI program for the next decade, which
will include more frequent household travel surveys using new technologies and methods, third
party data purchases, and other ancillary data collection. In 2016 the Council performed its
guinquennial transit on board survey to provide data to update forecast models following several
major transit service changes. The Council will continue to analyze and distribute on-board survey
data, as well as begin to plan for the next survey.

-In 2017, the Council initiated the 2018 TBI household travel survey. Data collection for the
household travel survey will occur in 2018 and analysis and distribution will continue into 2019.
Planning for the 2020 household travel survey will begin in late 2018. The Council will continue to
perform and support research on regional travel based on the TBI. The TBI data will be used to
update the Regional Travel Demand Forecast Model. In 2015, the Council completed
development of an activity-based model based on the 2010 TBI. Refinement, testing, application,
and release of the new model will continue through 2018. Development and refinement of base
highway, transit, freight, and pedestrian/bicycle networks will continue.

-The Council will continue to perform additional data collection as needed to support model
development and improvement. The Council will work with MnDOT to explore integrating dynamic
traffic assignment into the forecast model. The Council will continue to investigate additional
model improvements such as more detailed bicycle/pedestrian forecasting. The Council will take
advice from and potentially collaborate with peer agencies locally and nationally in understanding
the need for and implementing model improvements. The Council will cooperate with research
into regional travel forecasting conducted at the University of Minnesota or other research
institutions as appropriate.

-The Council will work with a local Travel Forecasting Technical Committee to plan for and
oversee the TBI program and modeling and forecasting needs. The Council will also provide
technical assistance and satisfy data requests from other agencies, local units of government and
consultants for regional studies, emissions inventories, comprehensive plans, corridor studies, or
project planning. It is anticipated that the Council will experience an increase in requests for data
and technical assistance as new corridor studies and comprehensive plan updates are initiated.
The Council will continue to provide technical assistance and review of major highway and transit
corridor and project forecasting.

-Council forecast staff also reviews the reasonableness of forecasts in local plans, environmental
documents, etc. that are transmitted to the Council. Staff will continue to review and analyze
information from federal data sources such as the Census Transportation Planning Package, the
American Community Survey, the National Household Travel Survey, and other data sources.

26



Staff will work with MnDOT and other potential local partners to coordinate assessment and
purchasing of third-party transportation data where appropriate.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: Travel demand forecasting is an ongoing activity of the
Council and region since 1967.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: The Council is the lead agency. MnDOT and the
Council have a Memo of Understanding on forecasting responsibilities. MNDOT will continue to
collaborate with the Council regarding any revisions to the regional model. Also, Metro District
and/or its consultants will provide project level, and system level forecasts to support development
of Trunk Highway projects, as well as the planning activities of the district. MNnDOT will also
involve the Council in Metro District’s review and approval of travel demand forecasts developed
by consultants for Trunk Highway projects. The Council will partner with MnDOT and local
jurisdictions in acquiring data on speed and congestion for the non-freeway arterial and collector
system.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Distribute Travel Forecast Model and Provide Needed Training and As Needed
Documentation

Provide Traffic Forecasts in Support of Council and MnDOT Studies As Needed

Provide Technical Assistance, Support, and Review for -Traffic Forecasts As Needed
performed by regional partners

Continued Model Development and Enhancement Ongoing

TBI Survey Reports, Data Distribution and Data Analysis Ongoing

Other Data Collection As Needed

TIP Forecast (for Use in Air Quality Conformity Finding) April and as needed
TPP Forecast (for Use in Conformity Finding and Scenario Analysis) As Needed

TASK C-3 TRAFFIC MONITORING AND EVALUATION

PURPOSE: The purpose of this program is to provide appropriate traffic data as needed to
determine annual average daily traffic (AADT) on trunk highways and state aid highways and
indicate travel trends and patterns. Data is also used for analysis of transportation caused air
pollution and noise.

ACTIVITIES: MnDOT, working through the Office of Transportation System Management, the
State Aid for Local Transportation Division, Traffic Management Center and District Traffic
Engineer in the Metro District, has established a cooperative counting program with the counties
and municipalities. This cooperative program was undertaken for efficiency, convenience and to
prevent duplication of vehicle counts, and is part of the overall statewide traffic monitoring
program. Special counts will be taken as the need is identified. This work provides a database for
identifying trends, and evaluating system performance.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: Traffic counting is conducted in the seven-county
metropolitan area on a 2 year cycle for all Trunk Highways, County Roads, County State Aid
Highways (CSAH), and a few Municipal State Aid Streets (MSAS). Most MSAS’s are counted on a
4 year cycle. There are about 9000 sites where traffic counts are collected. MnDOT’s Metro
District personnel conduct the counts on almost all of the 1000 Trunk Highway locations. Metro
county field staff collects data on all 2850 County and CSAH locations, and municipal field staff
collects data on the remaining 5150 MSAS locations. Traffic volumes representing Annual
Average Dally Traffic (AADT) are shown on traffic volume maps available online in pdf format.
These maps cover the seven-county metropolitan area and include individual municipal maps
showing the volumes on the Trunk Highway, County, and MSAS systems. All of these AADT

27



estimates including Heavy Commercial AADT (HCADT) estimates are available through the
interactive basemap or by using the GIS shape file product. More information about the program
as well as all of the available data is located on the web: http://www.dot.state.mn.us/traffic/data/

N AAAAAL OO aWaala Il a VialdaalFiV/a' me-—nroo aallalidaa

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: There is no Metropolitan Council time or funding
in this activity although it is essential to the 3C process. MNnDOT will continue to provide vehicle
count data to the region. This work provides a database for identifying trends and evaluating
system performance. This data is used by Metropolitan Council to calibrate the regional travel
demand forecast model, and by many implementing agencies for STP applications on the criteria
for “traffic volumes served.”

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Seven-county Metro Area Traffic Volume Maps (2016 volumes) July
Seven-county Metro Area Flow Map (2016 volumes) September

Activity C 2018 Budget

ACTIVITY STAFF WEEKS: 155

CONSULTANT: $305,000

TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES: $944,831

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

FEDERAL: (CPG) $755,865

LOCAL: Metropolitan Council $188,966

TOTAL $944,831

TRAVEL BEHAVIOR INVENTORY:

FEDERAL: (non-CPG) $900,000

LOCAL: Met Council, MnDOT, and Other $220,000

TOTAL $1,120,000

28


http://www.dot.state.mn.us/traffic/data/

D. OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT

TASK D-1 TRANSIT IMPLEMENTATION & EVALUATION

PURPOSE: To evaluate the application of transit service planning guidelines and performance
standards, achieving a regional consensus on equity and service priorities in the allocation of
transit resources, and instituting service changes.

ACTIVITIES: Review and develop service and capital plans to assure consistency with the
Transportation Policy Plan; selection of capital projects, monitoring of system performance and
financial status, and other activities to ensure coordination and review between the activities of
the Metropolitan Council and its operating entities. Apply service-planning guidelines to determine
service areas and types best suited for various areas of the region. Apply performance standards
to existing services to determine which services are performing well and which are not. This
includes the development of an annual Route Analysis that evaluates all routes in the regional
transit system against regional performance standards. The routes that are not performing well
should be the focus of restructuring or elimination. Formulate proposed service changes
(enhancement, restructure, or reduction) to take to the community for their reaction and input prior
to final implementation.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: The Council has routinely supported the planning of
transit implementation and evaluation of those activities. The Council works closely with transit
providers and partners to accomplish this work.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: The Council is the lead agency.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Monitor provider performance and financial status Ongoing
Transit Implementation assistance and activities Ongoing

TASK D-2 TRANSPORTATION PLANNING FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES

PURPOSE: To formulate plans for the coordination of specialized transportation services in
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) throughout the Metropolitan Area. To
conduct public policy research, identify policy issues and recommend policy actions for regional
specialized transportation services. To ensure public participation of this community in the transit
planning process.

ACTIVITIES: Coordinate the specialized transportation services throughout the Region including
Metro Mobility, other ADA transit services and community based paratransit services. Participate
with review of MNDOT 5310 capital funding requests for paratransit vehicles. Provide staff support
to the Transportation Accessibility Advisory Committee (TAAC). Cooperative activities will
continue with the counties and other social service providers on transportation assistance to
clients.

The Council will continue to study the likely increase in demand for Metro Mobility services. The
Human Services Coordination Plan will be updated with assistance from the Metropolitan
Transportation Services operations department in 2018.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: These work activities are a continuation of past
responsibilities carried out by regional government, including the Public Transit/Human Services
Coordination Plan. The Human Services Coordination Plan was last updated in 2013.

29



RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: The Council is the lead agency.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Coordination of Regional Specialized Transportation Services Ongoing

Coordinate TAAC Meetings Monthly

Human Services Coordination Plan 2018

TASK D-3 RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION LOAN FUND
PURPOSE: To administer the Right of Way Acquisition Loan Fund (RALF)

ACTIVITIES: In 1982 the Minnesota legislature established a revolving loan fund program to
acquire undeveloped property located within an officially-mapped metropolitan highway right-of-
way that is threatened by development. Council staff are responsible for administering this
program. This work is not federally funded. This includes reviewing RALF loan applications and
processing loan repayments. Staff also consults with interested cities to determine the eligibility of
specific parcels for RALF loans. The Council has the ability to levy property tax for the RALF
program. Each year, the Council decides whether a levy is necessary to support the program. In
addition, the Council is required to report on the status of the RALF program each year. This
activity is not eligible for federal planning funding but is included here to fully illustrate the work of
the Council’s planning department. This work is funded locally.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: In 2014 the Council concluded an assessment of the
program which showed long-term savings occurred because development of the land and its
appreciated costs have been preempted. Some eligibility modifications were made at that

time. Over the last 20 years loans have been made to acquire right of way parcels for TH 10, TH
52, TH 169, TH 212, TH 610, 1-494,1-694, 1-35W and I-35.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: Met Council staff works with MnDOT to determine
which parcels are needed for future state highway expansions. Staff also coordinates with
MnDOT to process RALF repayments and transfer ownership from the Council to MnDOT for
highway construction.

Activity D (excluding RALF) 2018 Budget
ACTIVITY STAFF WEEKS: 156
CONSULTANT: $0
TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES: $683,834
SOURCES OF FUNDS:

FEDERAL: (CPG) $547,067
LOCAL: $136,767
TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES: $683,834
RALF ONLY

ACTIVITY STAFF WEEKS: 9
CONSUILTANT: $0
SOURCES OF FUNDS:

FEDERAL: (CPG) $0
LOCAL: $34,988
TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES: $34,988

30



E. AVIATION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING

TASK E-1 AVIATION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING

PURPOSE: To maintain the long-term viability of the regional aviation system by ensuring
compatible land use planning, development, system efficiency, and project effectiveness. To
develop and implement long-range regional aviation policy, monitor and periodically review and
update the TPP (which now includes the APP). To also ensure aviation plan consistency with
current and anticipated technical, economic and political conditions. Provide for review and
coordination of aviation planning activities among agencies and municipalities.

ACTIVITIES: This activity will continue an aviation system planning program including an aviation
database, identification of needs, and evaluation of system performance. Coordination activities
continue with MNnDOT Aeronautics, Metropolitan Airports Commission (MAC), other airport
sponsors, communities, and users on the various metro aviation activities. Other activities include
reviews/approvals of individual airport long-term comprehensive plans (LTCPs) and LTCP
amendments, airport project environmental evaluations, airport annual capital improvement
programs, and land use (noise, safety, and infrastructure) compatibility planning. This task also
includes ongoing reviews of the aviation elements of local comprehensive plans and
comprehensive plan amendments. Continued coordination will occur on review of projects to
implement the MSP 2030 Long-Term Comprehensive Plan. Special efforts will be made in 2018
to assist local governments in updating aviation elements of their comprehensive plans due in
2018.

RELATIONSHIP TO PREVIOUS WORK: This work is a continuance of legislatively directed
responsibility for the Council to develop and update a regional transportation systems plan which
includes aviation. The 2040 Transportation Policy Plan was completed in 2015 with the major
work effort to incorporate new information from the 2030 System Plan Technical Update, updates
of all seven reliever airport LTCPs, and the ten-year updates of all metro communities and county
comprehensive plans. This work is locally funded outside of the annual UPWP funding.

RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER AGENCY WORK: The Council is the lead agency on metro airport
system planning and works closely with Metropolitan Airports Commission, who owns and
operates most of the region’s public airports and MnDOT Office of Aeronautics for statewide air
system planning and airport project funding. Other cities and agencies participate in planning
activities through the Council’s TAC/TAB process.

PRODUCTS COMPLETION DATES
Coordination Activities (including implementation of joint airport Ongoing
ordinances)
Potential System Plan (pending FAA Grant) As needed/2018
Review MAC’s Capital Improvement Program January
Review of Local Plan Amendments and EAs As needed
Plan Updates/Amendments for general aviation Ongoing
LTCP for Reliever Airports 2018

Activity E 2018 Budget

ACTIVITY STAFF WEEKS: 56

CONSULTANT: $0

TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES: $221,763

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

FEDERAL: $0

LOCAL: $115,363

LOCAL: MAC $106,400

TOTAL $221,763

31



APPENDICES

Staff Overhead
Weeks Salary Consultant & Total UPWP Local Local Other Percent
Task Task Title 2018 Cost Cost Expenses Cost Federal Met C MAC Federal Total Local
A Planning and Programming Process 314 $687,651 $10,000 $612,052) $1,309,703| $1,047,762 $261,941 $1,309,703 20%
B Comprehensive & Land Transp Pl 612 $1,238,256 $420,000 $1,192,917 $2,851,172| $2,280,938 " $570,234 $2,851,172 20%
C Research & Travel Forecasting 155 $337,703 $305,000 $302,128 $944,831 $755,865 $188,966 $944,831 20%
D Operations and Management 156 $379,757 $0 $304,077 $683,834 $547,067 $136,767 $683,834 20%
Federal Funding 1,237  $2,643,366 $735,000 $2,411,173 $5,789,539| $4,631,632 $1,157,908 $0 $0 $5,789,539 20%
E Aviation Transportation Planning 56 $112,607 $0 $109,156 $221,763 $0 $115,363 $106,400‘ $0 $221,763 100%
D-4 RALF 9 $17,445 $0 $17,543 $34,988 $0 $34,988 $0 $0 $34,988 100%
Non-federal Funding 65 $130,053 $0 $126,699 $256,751 $0 $150,351  $106,400 $550,000 $256,751 100%
Total UPWP 1,302 $2,773,419 $735,000 $2,537,872 $6,046,291 | $4,631,632 $1,308,259 $106,400  $550,000 $6,046,291 100%
Staff Overhead
Weeks Salary Consultant & Total UPWP Local Local UPWP Percent
Task Task Title 2018 Cost Cost Expenses Cost Federal Met C MAC Remainder Total Local
B/C  Travel Behavior Inventory (TBI) Study $1,120,000 $1,120,000 $220,000 $900,000 $1,120,000 20%
Council Funding - o $1,120,000 - $1,120,000 $0 $220,000 $0 $900,000 $1,120,000 100%
Total Transportation Planning/Administration 1,302 $2,773,419 $ 1,855,000 $2,537,872 | $ 7,166,291 | $4,631,632 $1,528,259 $106,400 $1,450,000 | $ 7,166,291 100%

32




UPWP

2018 UPWP Program Budget -- Salary Portion

Category Project Title

A

A-1

A-2
A-3

A-4
A-5
B

B-1

B-2
B-3
B-4
B-5
B-6
B-7
B-8
B-9

B-10

Planning and Programming
Process

Planning Program Support and
Administration

TIP Development and
Management

Regional Solicitation

Respond to Revisions in Federal
Transportation Law

Transportation Finance

Land Use and General
Transportation Planning

Performance-Based Planning and
Measurement

Congestion Management Process
Corridor Studies

Highway System Planning

Freight Planning

Transit Planning

Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning
Environmental Justice and Equity
Air Quality and Climate Change
Planning

Research and Travel
Forecasting

Travel Forecasting and Technical
Support

Urban Travel Research and
Forecasting

Traffic Monitoring and Evaluation

Operations and Management

Transit Implementation &
Evaluation

Transportation Planning for
People with Disabilities

Right of Way Acquisition Loan
Fund

Aviation Transportation
Planning

Aviation Transportation Planning

Federal
Funding
Amount

$254,116.96

$49,510.84
$55,012.04

$16,503.61
$110,024.08

$346,711.56

$19,812.09
$178,308.80
$178,308.80
$19,812.09
$39,624.18
$99,060.45
$69,342.31
$19,812.09

$19,812.09

$159,395.93

$102,661.79
$8,104.88

$86,422.16

$115,810.61

33

Local
Funding
Amount

$63,529.24

$12,377.71
$13,753.01

$4,125.90
$27,506.02

$86,677.89

$4,953.02
$44,577.20
$44,577.20
$4,953.02
$9,906.04
$24,765.11
$17,335.58
$4,953.02

$4,953.02

$39,848.98

$25,665.45
$2,026.22

$21,605.54

$28,952.65

$17,445.43

$112,607.30

Total Funding
Amount

$687,650.51

$317,646.20

$61,888.55
$68,765.05

$20,629.52
$137,530.10

$1,238,255.58

$433,389.45

$24,765.11
$222,886.00
$222,886.00
$24,765.11
$49,530.22
$123,825.56
$86,677.89
$24,765.11

$24,765.11

$337,703.25

$199,244.92

$128,327.24
$10,131.10
$379,756.73

$108,027.70

$144,763.27
$17,445.43

$112,607.30
$112,607.30



B. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF PARTICIPANTS

OVERVIEW OF THE ON-GOING 3-C PLANNING PROCESS BY THE MPO

As the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the Twin Cities area, the Council is the lead agency
responsible for administering and coordinating the activities of participants carrying out the required
tasks of the transportation planning process.

Participants in the transportation planning process include the Metropolitan Council; the Minnesota
Department of Transportation (MnDOT); the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA); the
Metropolitan Airports Commission (MAC); transit operators; counties and municipalities; local officials;
private citizens; and U.S. Department of Transportation (U.S. DOT).

Transportation agency staff from the agencies, counties and municipalities are involved in the policy-
making process through the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), which advises the Transportation
Advisory Board. Other subcommittees and task forces of the TAC deal with specific transportation
issues. Refer to Figure 2 in the Transportation Planning and Programming Guide, adopted June 2012,

(https://metrocouncil. orq/Transportatlon/PubI|cat|ons And Resources/Transportatlon Plannlnq and-
Programming-Guide-2013.aspx http:

Reseweesﬁmspeﬁa%@#lammq@wde—edf—assx) for a row—chart that dellneates transportatlon

committees of the TAB and TAC involved in the 3-C (continuing, comprehensive, cooperative)
transportation planning process.

Detailed information about the roles and responsibilities of agencies and local units of government in
the transportation planning process are included in the Transportation Planning and Programming
Guide. The Guide also includes information on adopted planning documents and web links for the
documents.

34


https://metrocouncil.org/Transportation/Publications-And-Resources/Transportation-Planning-and-Programming-Guide-2013.aspx
https://metrocouncil.org/Transportation/Publications-And-Resources/Transportation-Planning-and-Programming-Guide-2013.aspx

C.

FEDERAL FACTORS CONSIDERED BY PROGRAM ELEMENT

On August 10, 2005, Congress signed in law PL 109-50, the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient
Transportation Equity Act — A Legacy for Users, which is referred to as SAFETEA-LU. This law
required, under Section 6001 (h), that plans and programs address the eight elements listed below.
These same elements were retained in the FAST Act.

1) In general. — The metropolitan transportation planning process for a metropolitan area under this
section shall provide for consideration of projects and strategies that will —

A.

moow

_IG) M

“

Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling global
competitiveness, productivity and efficiency;

Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and nonmotorized users;
Increase the security of the transportation system for motorized and nonmotorized users;
Increase the accessibility and mobility of people and for freight;

Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, improve the quality of
life, and promote consistency between transportation improvements and State and local
planned growth and economic development patterns;

Enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and between
modes, for people and freight;

Promote efficient system management and operation;

Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system;

Improve resiliency and reliability of the transportation system and reduce or mitigate
stormwater impacts of surface transportation; and

Enhance travel and tourism.

The factors that apply to each element of the Unified Planning Work Program are listed below.

FEDERAL FACTORS A B C D E F G H I J

Planning and Programming

Process

Comprehensive and Surface

Transportation Planning

Research and Travel
Forecasting

Operations and Management X X X X X X X X X

Aviation Transportation

Planning

35



L

METROPOLITAN
@0 W N @71 L

390 Robert Street North
St Paul, MN 55101-1805

651.602.1000
TTY 651.291.0904

public.info@metc.state.mn.us

metrocotincil.ora



mailto:public.info@metc.state.mn.us

	2017-10 October Agenda
	Thursday, October 12, 2017

	2017-9 Sept Minutes
	1. Call to Order
	2. Adoption of the Agenda
	3. Approval of the Minutes from the August 2017 meetings
	4. Action Item 2017-24 Hennepin County Functional Class Requests #1349 & #1350
	5. Info Items
	5. Other Business
	6. Adjournment

	2017-27 MPO MOU Full
	2017-27 AT MPO MOU
	ACTION TRANSMITTAL  2017-27
	ROUTING


	170914 MOU_MetCouncil_2017
	MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU)
	Between
	The Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) and the metropolitan council of the twin cities (council)
	Figure 1: MPO designation affirmation
	figure 2: metro transit 5307 recipient designation


	2018 UPWP Info Item packet
	2018 UPWP Info Item.pdf
	2018 UPWP packet.pdf
	2018 UPWP draft FHWA redlined.pdf





